
Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: Wednesday, 20 March 2019
Time: 4.00 p.m.

Venue: Committee Room 2 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Pat Phillips
Tel: 0151 691 8488
e-mail: patphillips@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Board are asked whether they have any personal or 
prejudicial interests in connection with any application on the agenda 
and, if so, to declare them and state the nature of the interest.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 14 
November, 2018.

4. HEALTHWATCH WIRRAL 

Verbal update.

5. CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE 

5.1 Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 
2018 (Pages 7 – 50)

5.2 DCS Update : Improvement Board (Pages 51 – 58)

Ppoint presentation.

6. HEALTHY WIRRAL 

Public Document Pack



6.1 The NHS 10 Year Plan (Pages 59 – 72)

Ppoint Presentation – Simon Banks

6.2 Healthy Wirral Programme Update (Pages 73 -88)

6.3 Public Health : Health Protection A Call to Action (Pages 
89 – 102)

7. WIRRAL HEALTH & CARE COMMISSIONING 

7.1 Update from the Joint Commissioning Board

Report to follow.

7.2 Development of Neighbourhoods

Presentation to follow.

8. PARTNER UPDATES 

8.1 NHS Quarterly – Update (Pages 103 – 108)

8.2 Unplanned Care – Update (Pages 109 - 120)

9. CHESHIRE & MERSEY HEALTHCARE PARTNERSHIP 

Link - for information only.

https://www.cheshireandmerseysidepartnership.co.uk/ 

https://www.cheshireandmerseysidepartnership.co.uk/


HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Wednesday, 14 November 2018

Present: Councillor Phil Davies Chair

Ms N Allen NHS England
Dr F Alam Director, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust (dep for Sheena Cumiskey)
Ms C Challinor CQC Inspection Manager
Ms H Dennett Head of Inspection, Adult Social Care, NW Region, CQC
Mr D Eva Independent Chair, Healthy Wirral
Mr J Eyre Healthy Wirral Programme Manager
Mr A Higgins Head of Programme – Liverpool City Region PHE North West
Cllr C Jones Wirral Council
Mr N Kerswell Head of Regional Engagement, CQC
Cllr I Lewis Wirral Council
Ms V McGee Chief Operating Officer, Wirral Community NHS Foundation 

Trust dep for Karen Howell
Mr J Oxley Assistant Director, Health & Care Outcomes, Wirral Council
Mr D Robbins Business Manager, Wirral Safeguarding Children Board
Mr B Simpson Chair, Strategic Housing Partnership
Mr M Thomas Mersey Fire and Rescue
Ms J Webster Acting Director for Health & Wellbeing
Dr S Wells Chair, Wirral CCG

24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were asked if they had any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in 
connection with any application on the agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

Councillor Chris Jones declared a personal interest by virtue of her employment with 
the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.

Dr Sue Wells declared a non-pecuniary interest by virtue of being a partner in a 
medical practice.

25 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillor Phil Gilchrist, Fiona Johnstone, 
Director of Strategy & Partnerships, Graham Hodkinson, Director for Health & 
Care, Simon Banks, Chief Officer, NHS Wirral CCG and Wirral Health & Care 
Commissioning, Phil Davies, Healthwatch, Wirral, Councillor Bernie Mooney, 
Janelle Holmes, CEO Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust, Karen Howell, CEO Wirral Community NHS Foundation Trust, Chief 
Superintendent Ian Hassall, Merseyside Police, Dr Maggie Atkinson, 
Independent Chair, WSCB and Paul Boyce, Director for Children’s Services.

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



26 MINUTES 

That the accuracy of the Minutes of the Health & Wellbeing Formal Board held on18 
July 2018 be approved as a correct record.

27 HEALTHY WIRRAL 

Julian Eyre, Healthy Wirral Programme Manager, attended the meeting to present a 
Healthy Wirral update to the Board and responded to members questions.  The 
report set out the ‘Healthy Wirral’ programme as the prime system-wide programme 
to deliver sustainable and affordable long-term changes to the way that the health 
and wellbeing of the Wirral Population was supported.

The Healthy Wirral Programme had identified a mission of ‘Better health and 
wellbeing in Wirral by working together’ with the clearly stated aim to enable all 
people in Wirral to live longer and healthier lives by taking simple steps to improve 
their own health and wellbeing. By achieving this together the report set out how the 
very best health and social care services could be provided when people really 
needed them, as close to home as possible. Delivering this aim required the Wirral 
partners to rise to four key challenges set out in the report;

• Acting As One - exemplified in actions and behaviours.
• Clinical sustainability - sustainable, high quality, appropriately staffed, 
organisationally agnostic services.
• Improving population health - delivering the Healthy Wirral outcomes around 
better care and better health using a place based approach.
• Financial sustainability - managing with our allocation, taking cost out, 
avoiding costs, delivering efficiency and better value.

The report outlined the key actions that had been undertaken to date and the 
proposed next steps to be taken to progress the Healthy Wirral Programme.  
Members were informed that The Healthy Wirral programme had continued to make 
good progress against key objectives and details were provided of the priority areas 
that had been progressed as of October 2018.  Appendix 1 to the report provided a 
Summary of Healthy Wirral programme work streams and Appendix 2 provided the 
Healthy Wirral Memorandum of Understanding.

David Eva, Independent Chair, Healthy Wirral, commented that in order for the 
Healthy Wirral Programme to succeed partners had to work together.  Dr Sue Wells 
commented that it was beginning to feel different as people began to start to work 
together.

Resolved – That;

1 the report be noted and supported.

2 a more detailed report on Neighbourhood work be brought back to a 
future meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board.

28 CQC ANNUAL STATE OF CARE REPORT 

Page 2



Representatives from the CQC – Helena Dennett, Head of Inspection, Adult Social 
Care, NW Region, Nick Kerswell, Head of Regional Engagement and Catherine 
Challinor, Inspection Manager attended the Health & Wellbeing Board to present the 
annual report ‘The state of health care and adult social care in England 2017/18’ that 
had been presented to Parliament.

Members of the Board were also provided with a presentation on Older people's 
pathway - Wirral Local Authority that focused on the care for older people (aged 65+) 
living in the local authority.  It was explained that local authority comparator areas 
were drawn from 15 local authorities that were most similar to Wirral.  

The Chair of the Committee thanked the representatives from the CQC for a helpful 
presentation and it was;

Resolved – That;

1 the report be noted.

2 the CQC presentation slides ‘CQC Local System Data Summary: Older 
people's pathway Wirral Local Authority’ be circulated to members of 
the Health & Wellbeing Board.

29 LD COMMISSIONING UPDATE REPORT 

Members of the Board gave consideration to a report of Jason Oxley, Assistant 

Director, Health & Care Outcomes, that provided information on the approach that 

was being taken by Wirral Health and Care Commissioning to the commissioning of 

care and support services for people with a learning disability and/or autism in Wirral.

It was reported that Wirral had put in place a programme of work to achieve a greater 

range of support options for people with a learning disability. This would increase 

choice and control and would improve wellbeing and independence for people.

The report also informed that the national Transforming Care Programme had been 

developed to ensure that people who were not inappropriately supported in specialist 

hospital placements for people with a learning disability or autism, when they could 

effectively be supported in a non-clinical environment such as their own homes, 

natural communities, specialist residential care and closer to home.

It was reported that both the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group had 

budget pressures and had recognised that services could be more effectively 

commissioned to enable independence.

Page 3



This report described the commissioning approach that would provide a broader 

range of support services to meet the needs of people with a learning disability and 

that would contribute towards the delivery of the Wirral Plan pledges.  Jason Oxley 

also informed the Board of Extra Care Housing for people with a learning disability.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

30 LIVERPOOL CITY REGION 

Alan Higgins, Head of Programme, Liverpool City Region, Public Health England 
attended the meeting and presented a report that outlined how the City Region was 
developing a Wealth and Wellbeing Programme with the support of Public Health 
England.
 
The Board were informed that the focus of the work was on addressing health related 
worklessness and how the health and care sector could link with the regeneration 
agenda.

It was reported that the Wealth and Wellbeing programme was in a unique position to 
bridge the gap between health and economic agendas. It would focus on building 
bridges across the health and employment/skills agendas, linking portfolios in 
boroughs, translating relevant policy across the portfolios and developing a 
compelling narrative to drive change.

The report highlighted that it was essential that the LCR programme fit closely with 
work in each of the LCR boroughs on work and health.  The purpose of the 
presentation was to set out the scope of the LCR programme, align it with work in 
Wirral and to ask the Health and Wellbeing Board to identify further opportunities to 
work together on this agenda.

Resolved – That;

1 the report be noted.

2 a progress report be brought back to the Health & Wellbeing Board in 6 
months’ time.

31 CHILDREN SAFEGUARDING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 

David Robbins, Business Manager, Wirral Safeguarding Children Board, attended 
the meeting and presented the WSCB Annual Report 2017-2018 which was a multi-
agency document with the key issues identified by the independent chair, Maggie 
Atkinson.

The full report was report was available on the following link;

http://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/WSCB-Annual-
Report-2017-18-5.pdf

Page 4

http://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/WSCB-Annual-Report-2017-18-5.pdf
http://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/WSCB-Annual-Report-2017-18-5.pdf


Resolved – That;

1 the report be noted.

2 a report providing the new arrangements for the Multi-agency 
Safeguarding Arrangements from September 2019 be brought to a 
future meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

32 PARTNER UPDATES 

33 NHSE QUARTERLY UPDATE 

Nicola Allen, Head of Medical, NHS England (Cheshire & Merseyside) & Lead for 
Service Change Assurance provided a report to the Health & Wellbeing Board with 
details of the activities and responsibilities of NHS England. This report outlined 
national and regional activities for the period August to October 2018 together with 
specific updates on priorities that the Local NHS England Teams were responsible 
for.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

34 HEALTHWATCH 

The Health and Wellbeing Board gave consideration to a report of Healtwatch.  The 
report provided the quarterly update as at November 2018 and highlighted the 
National Awards hosted by HW England.  At the HW England Conference in 
September HW Wirral was the Winner in the “Providing Information and Advice when 
it is needed”.  Healthwatch had been shortlisted from 170 nominations, over 5 
categories.  In the Info Bank Healthwatch had spoken with over 12,000 individuals 
last year, signposting and supporting them with concerns about health and care 
provision on Wirral.  

Resolved – That the report be noted.

35 CHESHIRE & MERSEY HEALTHCARE PARTNERSHIP 

The following link was provided for information;

https://www.cheshireandmerseysidepartnership.co.uk 

36 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The date of the next formal Board meeting is Wednesday, 20 March 2019 at 4:00 pm 
in Committee Room 2 Town Hall, Wallasey.

Page 5

https://www.cheshireandmerseysidepartnership.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 
Sue Redmond – Independent Chair 

Merseyside Safeguarding Adults 
Board 

 Annual Report 2017 -2018 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5a



P
age 8



P
age 9



P
age 10



P
age 11



P
age 12



P
age 13



P
age 14



P
age 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



P
age 18



P
age 19



P
age 20



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
DATE: 20 MARCH 2019

REPORT TITLE Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board 

REPORT OF Annual Report 2017-2018

REPORT SUMMARY
The Annual Report 2017-2018 of the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board 

Background
This is the first Annual Report of the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board (MASB).  The 

MSAB covers 4 areas including Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton and Wirral.  

RECOMMENDATION/S
For information 

Page 21



2

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
N/A

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
N/A

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/A

5.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
N/A

6.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
N/A

7.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
N/A

8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

REPORT AUTHOR: Name: Alison Marchini
Role: Business Manager 
telephone:  01516663635
email:   alisonmarchini@wirral.gov.uk 

APPENDICES

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
N/A

Page 22

mailto:alisonmarchini@wirral.gov.uk


  

 

 

Merseyside  

Safeguarding Adults 

Board   
(Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton and Wirral)  

 

Annual Report   

2017-2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SAFEGUARDING IS EVERYBODY’S BUSINESS 

P
age 23



2 

 

 

PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

 

P
age 24



3 

 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

Contents….           Page Number 

 

1.  Contents             3    

2.  Glossary of Terms        4 

3.  Foreword           5 

4.  About the Board        6-8 

5.  Our Population          9 

6.  Safeguarding Data        10-16 

7.  What have people told us ?    17 

8.  Work of the Sub Groups            18-23 

9.     What have we achieved ?     24 

10.  2018-2020 Strategic Plan & Priorities  25-26  

11. Year of Challenge        27 

P
age 25



4 

 

G
lo

ssa
ry

 o
f Te

rm
s 

Glossary of Terms  

 

MSAB   Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board 

PVP   Protection of Vulnerable People 

TEASC  Towards Excellence in Adult Social Care 

MSP   Making Safeguarding Personal  

SAR   Safeguarding Adults Review 

ADASS  Association of Directors of Adult Social Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 26



5 

 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 b
y

 th
e

 C
h

a
ir 

 
One of the most important roles in the community is ensuring adults are safe from abuse, exploitation and harm. That is why 
as part of The Care Act 2014 all Local Authorities were required to establish a Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) for their   
area, to ensure that people who have care and support needs are protected. 

 

The Board operates at a senior level with membership across a wide range of partners and has a statutory responsibility to 
monitor and evaluate what is done by partner agencies individually and collectively to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
everyone in the areas covered by the Board 

 

In 2017 Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton and Wirral Local Authority areas moved from having individual Safeguarding Boards to 
one  combined Board for all 4 areas. This is now known as the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board. All partners agreed 
that, by coming together and working across the wider footprint , better use could be made of resources therefore providing a 
more consistent approach by all partners to prevention, training and processes and that a greater impact could be made for 
local people in raising quality in all services across the area.  

 

This short report is the first annual report of the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board. It looks at what we have been doing 
in the first year and I am proud to be part of the development of the work of the board to date. It looks at the work of the sub 
groups who do much of the work on behalf of the board and details some of the actions that we have completed so far. At 
every meeting and development session for the Board we have been committed to inviting people who’s lives have been   
affected by experiences they have had of the system or of abuse and all members really appreciate their contributions. 

  

The report also details our priorities for the coming year and our first priority is hearing the voice of people who use services 
and also the voices of the front line staff who work with them. It is vital that the Board is grounded in real lives and real        
experiences to enable it to develop responses and actions that can make the most difference and to enable people to be able 
to live their lives free from fear and harm.  

 

Thank you to those people and groups who have presented and shared their experiences with the Board, to the sub groups 
chairs and members and to all partners who are fully committed to the work of the Board. Also a huge thank you on behalf of 
all members to the Boards Business Unit team who do so much behind the scenes to enable us to do our work. 

 

 

        Sue Redmond—Independent Chair  

P
age 27



6 

 

A
b

o
u

t th
e

 b
o

a
rd

 
The Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board  

 
Safeguarding agencies across Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton and Wirral are working together to ensure that adults are able to 
live in safety and free from abuse and neglect.  In April 2017 the former Safeguarding Adults Boards in these areas joined   
together to form the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board (MSAB) to work together to achieve more effective and            
personalised safeguarding.  
 
This new combined board has now been established for twelve months and has built on the work of the previous              
Safeguarding Adults Boards and the valued contributions of partner agencies. 
 
Using the experiences and advice of our communities together with the expertise of its members, the Board leads adult    
safeguarding arrangements, overseeing and coordinating the effectiveness of the safeguarding work of its partner agencies.       
 
The purpose of the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board is to work in partnership to safeguard adults in Knowsley,          
Liverpool, Sefton and Wirral; who are experiencing, or at risk of abuse or neglect. It is committed to effective communication 
between communities, professionals and partners in developing effective safeguarding for those at risk. 
 
The core duties of the Board are set out in Chapter 14 of the Care Act Statutory Guidance issued under S78 of the Care Act 
2014 which requires the Board to: 
 

• Publish a Strategic Plan for each financial year detailing how it will meet its main objectives and what members will 
do to achieve this 

• Publish an Annual Report detailing what the Board has done during the year 
• Arrange Safeguarding Adults Reviews in accordance with Section44 of the Care Act 2014  
 

Should anyone have cause to alert us towards incidents of abuse please continue to use the contacts supplied by your local 
council, which remain unchanged within each local authority area. 

P
age 28



7 

 

A
b

o
u

t th
e

 b
o

a
rd

 
Membership 

 
The following statutory organisations are  

represented on the MSAB: 

Knowsley Borough Council 

Liverpool City Council 

Sefton Borough Council 

Wirral Council 

Merseyside Police 

NHS Knowsley Clinical Commissioning Group 

NHS Liverpool Clinical Commissioning Group 

NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group 

NHS Southport and Formby Clinical Commissioning Group 

NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

 

          The non-statutory organisations include: 

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service 

Healthwatch 

Sefton CVS 

Merseyside Community Rehabilitation Company 

National Probation Service 

HM Prisons 

Northwest Ambulance Service 

 Elected members for each constituent local authorities 

also sit on the board  

 

  

  

 

Terms of Reference 

The board meets on a quarterly basis and has two development sessions a year .  

In order to be quorate the board must include no less than two of the statutory 

partners and no less than 75% of the agreed membership.  

 

P
age 29



8 

 

A
b

o
u

t th
e

 b
o

a
rd

 

K
N

O
W

S
LE

Y
 

LIV
E

R
P

O
O

L 

S
E

F
T

O
N

 

W
IR

R
A

L 

The MSAB agreed a number of sub groups to take forward various work streams  

The subgroups of the MSAB are as follows: 

  1.  Safeguarding Adults Review Sub Group    2.  Communication and Engagement Sub Group 

                  3.  Policy, Procedure and Practice Sub Group      4.  Performance and Audit Sub Group  

  5.  Quality Assurance Sub Group       6.  Work Force Development Sub Group  

 

MERSEYSIDE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD  

Communica�on & 

Engagement Sub–

group 

Policy, Proce-

dure & Prac�ce 

Sub-group 

Performance  

& Audit        

Sub-group 

Quality          

Assurance   

Sub-group 

Workforce   

Development  

Sub-group 

Safeguarding 

Adult Review   

Sub-group 

P
age 30



9 

 

O
u

r P
o

p
u

la
-

o
n

 
 Who lives in our areas ? 

 

The adult population across the geographical areas of Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton and Wirral  is approximately 982,354. This 

is broken down into Knowsley (115,206), Liverpool (392,637), Sefton (220,902) and Wirral (253,609).  Of all four areas Sefton 

and Wirral have the highest numbers of residents aged 85+. 

 

 

P
age 31



10 

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 D

a
ta

 
    Safeguarding Concerns     

 

From 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018      

there were 12,104 adult safeguarding        

concerns received with the Adult Social Care 

departments across our 4 constituent Local 

Authority areas. 

It is clear from the accompanying chart that 

there are significant differences between the 

four areas with Knowsley showing a            

significantly lower number of concerns             

received than the other 3 areas and Wirral 

showing the highest. This is representative of 

the national picture which shows the same 

differentials between Local Authorities across 

the country. 

The board has recognised that there are      

differences in the way in which each         

component Local Authority classifies and    

records data. This is being further considered 

via the Performance & Audit sub group with 

the aim of working towards a more consistent 

approach in the classification and recording of 

information.  

It is important to note that the Front Door arrangements for all 4 Local authorities were reviewed by the board during this time period 

and there was no indication that these figures highlighted a  deficiency in the way that individuals were being safeguarded or that 

adults with care & support needs were being left at risk. The board were assured that this is a counting and classification issue and 

highlighted differences in pathways . The front door work also developed a good practice pathway for all councils to follow and work 

will be ongoing in 2018/19 to assure the board that the recommendations are being implemented. 

 

 

Total number of concerns raised versus the total number of individuals 

involved in those concerns  

 Key:            Solid block shows the number of concerns raised   

                   Pa2erned block shows the number of individuals for whom concerns were raised 

         

         

P
age 32



11 

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 D

a
ta

 
Safeguarding Concerns and Enquiries  

 

 Key:          Solid block shows the number of concerns raised   

                    Pa2erned block shows the number and % of concerns raised which progressed to an enquiry 

         

         

Total number of Safeguarding concerns raised compared to the 

total number that progressed to some form of Safeguarding 

Enquiry 

The total number of concerns 

which progressed to an enquiry 

across all 4 areas from April 2017 

to March 2018 was 5,129.  

The conversion rate across our 4 

areas varied between 14% and 

73%. In the Northwest as a region 

the lowest conversion rate was 

14% and the highest was 100%. 

Nationally the lowest conversion 

rate was 3.9%. 

Once again the differences in  

conversion rates have been      

investigated and the board were 

assured that locally defined    

practices, pathways and triage 

points could explain the            

differentials. 

A piece of work moving forward for 

the board is to determine whether 

the variances are acceptable    

given their reflection of the        

national picture or whether a move     

towards more consistent           

application of criteria and        

pathways would better enable the 

board and partners to understand 

the adult safeguarding landscape 

across the areas. 

P
age 33



12 

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 D

a
ta

 
What were the most prevalent types of abuse ? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                         

Neglect and acts of omission were the main forms of abuse experienced by adults at risk during 2017/2018 across all four local  

authority areas. This is in line with national reporting for the same time period and accounted for 32.1% of abuse nationally.  The 

same trend followed nationally with Physical abuse at 22.2%, Financial abuse at 14.6% and Psychological abuse equating to 

13.1% of all abuse. The lower percentage of Psychological abuse in Wirral is noted but on investigation it is believed that this is due 

to a more frequent use of the ‘Organisational’ abuse category.  

Includes ignoring medical or physical care needs, failure to provide 

access to appropriate health, social care or educational services, 

the withholding of the necessities of life, such as medication, nutri-

tion and heating. 

Includes theft, fraud, exploitation, pressure in connection with wills, 

property or inheritance or financial transactions, or the misuse or 

misappropriation of property, possessions or benefits. 

Includes emotional abuse, threats of harm or abandonment, depri-

vation of contact, humiliation, blaming, controlling, intimidation, 

coercion, harassment, verbal abuse, isolation or withdrawal from 

services or supportive networks.  

Includes hitting, slapping, pushing, kicking, misuse of medication, 

restraint or inappropriate sanctions.  

P
age 34



13 

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 D

a
ta

 
Where did the Safeguarding incidents take place ? 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The accompanying charts show the locations in which the alleged incidents of abuse and/or neglect took place. 

From April 2017 to March 2018 the location most frequently recorded across all four areas was ‘Own Home’ and ‘Residential Home’ 

and once again this reflects the national picture. 

It is important to note however that an incident may have occurred in another location but was only identified in these locations. An 

example of this could be an individual receives unexplained bruising whilst out with family or at a day centre but they are only noted 

when they return home (own home/ residential or nursing home). It is also important to note that CQC reporting requirements and 

general surveillance within Nursing and Residential homes can increase the identification and levels of reporting of incidents from 

those locations. 

P
age 35



14 

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 D

a
ta

 
Who were the alleged perpetrators of the 

abuse ? 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying charts show the location of the 

abuse and whether the alleged perpetrator was 

known to the individual. 

Regardless of the recorded location of the abuse the 

majority of alleged perpetrators were known to the 

individual either personally or professionally. 

Once again this is line with national reporting     

showing an approximate 80/20 split between own 

home/ nursing/ residential care against ‘Other’      

locations such as hospitals and community services. 

 

  Key:          Solid colour indicates the % of alleged perpetrators known to the individual 

                          Pa2erned block shows the % of  alleged perpetrators not known to the individual 

NB. Not known categorisa�on is also used when the alleged perpetrator has not been recorded 

         

         

P
age 36



15 

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 D

a
ta

 
How were the risks managed ? 

                     

 

 Key:           Solid block illustrates the %  of cases in which iden�fied risks were removed or reduced   

                   Pa2erned block illustrates the % of cases in which iden�fied risks remained 

         

         

The adjacent chart illustrates the  

outcomes of all safeguarding        

enquiries between April 2017 and 

March 2018 and whether the risk 

posed to the individual was reduced 

or removed.  

In all four geographical areas the 

risks in over 90% of cases were    

removed or reduced. Whilst this does 

indicate that a small number of risks 

remained those risks may remain at 

the request of the individual or will 

have been mitigated against in    

consultation with the individual. This 

can happen in cases whereby the 

alleged perpetrator is a family    

member whom the individual wishes 

to remain in contact with or doesn't 

wish to implement safety measures. 

An individual has the right, with    

support where appropriate, to       

determine the most appropriate 

course of action for them. This is 

central to  personalisation within 

adult safeguarding. 

P
age 37



16 

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 D

a
ta

 
Where the outcomes expressed by individuals met?  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above  chart shows the percentage of concluded 

enquiries where people were asked and they expressed 

their desired outcomes. There are significant variations 

between all four geographical areas ranging from 95% 

to 50%. This is believed to be, in part, due to local     

arrangements put in place by individual authorities 

along with variances in recording procedures. This is an 

area of work that is being progressed by the board. 

The above chart shows the percentage of individuals 

in the  adjacent chart who felt the outcomes they  

expressed had been met. For all four areas this was 

over 90% demonstrating that when individuals are 

empowered to express the outcomes they desire the 

vast majority of those are met. Those for whom they 

were not met may be due to the initial level of       

expectation, changes in expectations and wishes or 

the need to intervene for the safety of others. 

P
age 38



17 

 

W
h

a
t h

a
v

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 to
ld

 u
s 

What have people told us ? 
At most board meetings we have heard directly from people who have experience of services about 

what matters to them.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We are making it our top priority for the coming year to hear more from 

people directly and to work with them to make a difference. 

You don’t organise 

services around 

me! 

What does 

the word 

safeguarding 

even mean?  

We are NOT             

vulnerable 

Little things 

have a big 

impact 

I want consistent 

carers and support. When I’m in Crisis 

you seem to forget 

me? 

Respect my          

advance statement  

I don’t want to go to A&E in a 

crisis as they see me as an 

attention seeker….  

What gets written about me is 

important and needs to be 

right!  

P
age 39



18 

 

W
o

rk
 o

f th
e

 S
u

b
-G

ro
u

p
s 

 Safeguarding Adult Review Groups 

Chaired by Senior Officer, Merseyside Police  

Remit 

To date the Board has operated 4 SAR 
groups, one in each of its Local Authority   
areas.  

As detailed in section 44 of the Care Act 2014 
it is the responsibility of the Safeguarding 
Adults Board to arrange for a review to be  
undertaken when an adult with care & support 
needs in its area has died as a result of or  
experienced serious abuse or neglect 
(whether known or suspected) and there are 
concerns that partner agencies could have 
worked together more effectively to protect 
the adult. 

The remit of each SAR group was to: 

•  receive referrals, from the public or  
other professionals, and give             
consideration to the circumstances of 
the case. A  recommendation along with 
a detailed rationale is provided to the 
Independent Chair of the board who 
makes the final decision as to whether a 
review should be undertaken 

• The groups were also responsible for 

overseeing any reviews that take place , 

agreeing the final report prior to        

board sign off and then the implementa-

tion of all  action plans 

• To ensure that board learnt from        

reviews and learning was effectively 

shared. 

Achievements 

• The SAR groups in all 4 areas  met 
frequently between April 2017 and 
March 2018  

• 23 cases in total were considered. 
Of those 23 cases 2 have          
progressed to a full SAR, 1 was 
progressed as a joint Domestic 
Homicide Review / SAR and 1 was 
progressed as a multi-agency 
learning review under the         
auspices of the board 

• The Board received and signed off 
4 completed SARs which had 
been commissioned by previous 
individual boards prior to the    
inception of the new combined 
board in April 2017 

• The board has also undertaken a 
holistic review of all SAR           
recommendations received to 
board in the last 12 months. These 
were themed across 9 areas and 
shared with over 70 board and sub 
group members at a recent       
development day. This work will 
inform the boards strategic plan 
for the next 2 years.  

The Coming Year 

• The board has made a decision 
to move to a single SAR group 
covering all 4 local authority  
areas with an anticipated        
implementation date of January 
2018 

• The board recognised the     
complexities and associated 
risks that the continuation of 4 
separate groups posed to the 
board and business unit and 
moved to remedy this 

• A new Learning & Review Officer 
to be recruited to oversee the 
work of the group and all        
reviews  

• An online administratiive         
solution is to be purchased to 
enable more effective tracking 
and oversight of reviews from 
referral through to completion of 
action plans 

• Our ambition is to ensure that 
the views of those involved are 
central to  any review process 
and all learning from reviews is 
shared and embedded within 
practice for all staff. 

P
age 40



19 

 

W
o

rk
 o

f th
e

 S
u

b
-G

ro
u

p
s 

Communica-on and Engagement  

    Chaired by Senior Officer, Merseyside Fire and Rescue 

Remit 

The remit of the Communication and 

Engagement sub group in the first 

year was to: 

• lead the development,             

implementation and evaluation 

of a multi-agency strategy aimed 

at increasing the awareness of 

safeguarding and 

• promote the involvement of 

adults at risk, carers and        

advocates within the work of 

Merseyside Safeguarding Adults 

Board (MSAB) and its partners . 

The group committed to the             

development of practice that not only 

consults with all  relevant agencies but 

also takes account of the views of 

adults who have needs for care and 

support, their families, advocates and 

carer representatives. 

Achievements 

• The subgroup has overseen the 
establishment of a dedicated   
website, designed to raise    
awareness of adult safeguarding 
and support those who may need 
assistance 

• It has also worked to gauge the 
‘Voice of the Service User’, and 
that of the ‘Frontline worker’ to 
inform further policy and service 
development  drawing on the    
expertise of our  Healthwatch  
partners 

• The sub group has compiled a  
directory of service user forums 
and groups whom the board can 
work alongside and consult on 
various areas of work 

• A ’brand’ has been developed for 
the board along with a range of 
posters and publicity materials to 
assist in the duty to raise the 
awareness of adult safeguarding 
across the public and                 
professionals  

• The sub group has also supported 
the identification of speakers with 
experience of safeguarding  issues 
to share their experiences with the 
board. 

The Coming Year 

Following a twelve month review of its 
function, it has been decided that the   
subgroup will split to focus on 
‘Communications’ and ‘Engagement’ as 
two distinct functions.  Key activities for 
the forthcoming year are as follows: 

 

• Development of a ‘virtual’            
communications group that will    
disseminate information from the 
Board across the wider partnership 

• The identification and supporting of 
service users to tell and share their 
experiences at future board       
meetings 

• Oversight and monitoring of a    
commissioned ‘Voice of the Service 
User’ and ‘Voice of the Frontline 
Worker’ project with Healthwatch 

• Planning a series of visits for board 
members to meet with frontline 
workers engaged in the delivery of 
safeguarding activities  

• Attendance at community  events to 
raise awareness with the public  as 
well as events for professionals. 

P
age 41



20 

 

W
o

rk
 o

f th
e

 S
u

b
-G

ro
u

p
s 

Policy, Procedure and Prac-ce 

    Chaired by the Head of Safeguarding, Knowsley Council 

Remit 

 

The remit of the Policy, Procedure and 

Practice sub group in the first year was 

to: 

• Develop policies for approval by 

the safeguarding board that     

reflect key safeguarding         

functions which are a priority for 

all Board members and partner 

agencies 

• Begin to develop procedures that 

support all partners by making 

sure our safeguarding responses 

across Merseyside are effective 

towards a consistent and       

qualitative service 

• Identify areas where our         

safeguarding responses can be 

improved, and to support all of 

our services to deliver responses 

to deliver  safeguarding service 

based on best practice. 

Achievements 

 

• The subgroup has assisted in             
developing  both the Safeguarding    
Policy and the Persons in Positions of 
Trust Policy  adopted by ADASS. The 
group has produced policies in  respect 
of Information Sharing and the           
Escalation of Concerns. It has  also  
contributed to the development of the 
board’s Safeguarding Adults Review 
Policy and Procedure 

• By using a variety of information 
sources, the group has begun to look at 
the quality and variance of responses to 
safeguarding notifications across the 
four authorities. This work will continue 
into 2018/19, the overall aim is  to      
ensure good quality responses to        
safeguarding notifications consistent 
with the law, research and best practice 

• Work with John Moore’s University, 
commenced with the first of three 
planned workshops taking place with 
professionals. This was held to explore 
ways in which  the response to           
self–neglect can be improved. Feedback 
from staff  is the key to  informing good 
practice. A guide to best practice and a 
‘toolkit’ will be available in early 2019. 

The Coming Year 

 

• The subgroup will continue to       
produce requisite board policies on   
behalf of the board during 2018/19.  
The focus will be on developing   
consistent responses to adult     
safeguarding across board areas. 

• The same model of staff learning we 
have developed in respect of          
self-neglect will be integrated into 
other areas of challenging            
safeguarding practice going forward 
into 2019 and  beyond. 

 

 

P
age 42



21 

 

W
o

rk
 o

f th
e

 S
u

b
-G

ro
u

p
s 

Quality Assurance  

Chaired by the Chief Nurse, NHS Liverpool CCG 

Remit 

 

The remit of the Quality Assurance sub 

group in the first year was to: 

• lead, on behalf of the Board, on    

specific projects to better              

understand the quality of            

Safeguarding Adults work across 

the geographical footprint and      

develop strategies for improvement. 

This included the  development of an 

annual self   assessment 

• Undertake activities to gain            

assurance re the effectiveness of        

safeguarding adults procedures and 

professional practice 

• Receive all action plans resulting 

from SARs and other reviews, and 

undertake a thematic review to look 

at wider streams of learning. 

Achievements 

 

• A full review of ‘Front Door”         

arrangements across the 4 Local 

Authority areas was undertaken and 

a report was presented to the Board 

highlighting good practice, areas of 

difference and opportunities for  

development.  

 These recommendations are now 

 being progressed  and reported to 

 board 

• A multi agency audit was developed 

ready for completion in summer 

2018 

• A task & finish group scrutinised 

the percentage of Concerns         

progressing to Enquiries (due to 

significant variances between the 4 

areas) which fed into the review of 

front door arrangements detailed 

above. 

The Coming Year 

 

• A full safeguarding audit                 

developed by a multi agency task 

and finish group will take place in 

the summer of 2018 and annually 

thereafter 

• The QA group will analyse the   

audit findings and undertake     

accountability meetings with     

agencies to discuss their           

self-assessments and develop  

individual action plans. 

• The sub group will  oversee all 

SAR recommendations identifying 

themes and trends in order to    

inform future strategy and  work 

streams  of the board and sub 

groups. 

P
age 43



22 

 

W
o

rk
 o

f th
e

 S
u

b
-G

ro
u

p
s 

Performance and Audit  

Chaired by the Chief Nurse, NHS South Sefton CCG 

NHS Southport and Formby CCG 

Remit 

The remint of the Performance & Audit sub 

group in the first year was to: 

• receive validated data from partner     

agencies and to scrutinise the data to 

identify trends and themes to inform 

priority areas of work  

• publish the MSAB performance dataset 

and supporting narrative and to provide 

exception reports to the board 

• continually review the partnership data 

indicators to ensure the Merseyside 

SAB is clearly sighted on the              

effectiveness of arrangements to     

safeguard adults    

• oversee the provision of performance 

information for the MSAB Annual      

Report 

• identify areas of risk/escalation, record 

them in the risk register and escalate 

concerns to the board. 

 

Achievements 

• An initial review of performance  

information across the partners   

resulted in a programme of work 

being undertaken which looked at 

social care data in the first instance 

• A separate piece of work was      

undertaken with the data analysts 

who now meet with the MSAB     

performance lead on a bi monthly 

basis in order to ensure a better 

understanding and planning for  

future data collection 

• Monthly reviews of data were      

undertaken and areas of difference 

across the 4 areas identified with 

the aim of moving towards a more          

consistent approach towards the 

classification of information and 

use of  terminology 

• Initial development of a multi-

agency dataset demonstrating the 

activity of a wide range of partners 

towards the safeguarding adults 

agenda. 

The Coming Year 

• The sub group will be taking  

responsibility for the annual   

audit calendar for the board . A 

schedule of multi agency audits 

will be undertaken across the 

partnership and findings will be 

used to identify areas for        

development and collaboration 

• The multi agency dataset will be 

further developed and will be 

used as a means of presenting 

complex data in an easier format 

to enable understanding and  

inform decision making  

• The collection and   oversight of 

quarterly Social Care data will 

continue to identify collective 

areas for concern and action. 

P
age 44



23 

 

W
o

rk
 o

f th
e

 S
u

b
-G

ro
u

p
s 

Workforce Development  

Chaired by Director of Quality  and Safety for Wirral    

Clinical Commissioning Group 

Achievements 

 

• The subgroup has undertaken an  
audit to establish  the level of multi-
agency safeguarding  training  being 
delivered across the Merseyside area 

• Agreement was reached by the board 
that training  resources could and 
should be shared. This allows staff 
members, volunteers and individuals 
to access courses provided by any 
constituent agency of the MSAB. 
This includes access to a suite of e-
courses which was previously only 
available to  Wirral staff 

• The group has also developed and 
published a members handbook that 
has been distributed to members of 
the board in order to  provide clear 
guidance on their role and             
responsibilities. 

The Coming Year 

 

• The group is developing a workforce 
strategy together with an annual work 
plan on behalf of the board to ensure 
that effective training and a competent 
workforce is established and         
maintained 

• The group will be exploring the results 
of the “voice of the front line worker” 
to ensure the work of the board is 
grounded in not only the voice of 
those who use services but also those 
that work most closely with them 

• Training for board members will be 
commissioned by this group to ensure 
that the MSAB “ls able to lead by     
example” in all areas of adult         
safeguarding and act effectively as an 
entity to ensure it meets its              
requirements under the Care Act 2014. 

Remit 

 

The remit of the Workforce Development 
Sub group in the first year was to: 

• Undertake a scoping exercise of all 
multi agency safeguarding adults 
training delivered across the 4 Local 
Authority areas 

• Identify training resources that 
could be shared across the areas 

• Support the board to better          
understand the Care Act               
requirements in relation to training 
oversight and provision 

• Develop an effective approach to the 
sharing of learning arising from 
Safeguarding Adult Reviews. 

 

 

P
age 45



24 

 

W
h

a
t h

a
v

e
 w

e
 a

ch
ie

v
e

d
 ?

 

 

What have we achieved? 

1. We have heard the experiences of people who use our services 

2. Established a sub-group structure that reports to and from board 

3. Held a Self-Neglect workshop in collabora-on with Liverpool John Moores University 

4. Reviewed and dra=ed Board Policies and Procedures  

5. Undertook a review of the Front Door arrangements across the four areas and recommended a good prac-ce model 

6. Established a performance framework through the colla-on of performance data for the four Local Authori-es 

7. Reviewed the Toward Excellent for Adult Social Care (Na-onal Dataset) submission’s for all four areas 

8. Established a directory of Service User groups and forums 

9. Developed an online Safeguarding self –assessment tool for comple-on annually 

10. Undertook a joint Domes-c Homicide Review and Safeguarding Adults Review (DHR, SAR) with Liverpool Council 

11. Received four completed SAR reports and recommenda-ons 

12. Developed a Board Members Handbook 

13. Developed a Suite of E-Learning courses made available through the Workforce Development sub-group 

14. Visited and established links with all four Safer Communi-es Partnerships 

15. AHended Police Community Ac-on Groups to publicise the work of the board 

16. Contributed to Northwest ADASS policy development 

17. Linked in with wider forums i.e. PVP  group and sub groups   

18. Developed a Board Website www.merseysidesafeguardingadultsboard.co.uk 

P
age 46



25 

 

P
rio

ri-
e

s fo
r 2

0
1

8
-2

0
2

0
 

Priorities  for 2018 — 2020  

 

Building on the work undertaken by the Sub Groups and the Business 

Unit in the past year, the board have agreed 5 priority areas for the fol-

lowing two years.  These priorities will be the focus of our work and spe-

cific actions and timelines for each are detailed in the boards Strategic 

Plan and Business Plan which can be found on our website. 

 

Priorities 

1. Voice of the Service User and Front Line Staff 

2. Assurance and Challenge 

3. Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SAR’s) 

4. Effective Communication 

5. Effectiveness of the Board 

P
age 47



26 

 

S
tra

te
g

ic P
la

n
 2

0
1

8
-2

0
2

0
 

 

P
age 48



27 

 

T
h

e
 Y

e
a

r o
f C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 
2018-2019 

The Year of Challenge  
 

The first year has been a busy one as we came together as one Board.  In addi�on to 

the priori�es we have agreed the year ahead is also one where members of the Board 

have commi2ed to work even closer together to deliver real impact across all         

partners and communi�es. 

 

All partners will endeavour to work together to: 

♦ collaborate more across Merseyside  

♦ share  and embed good prac�ce  

♦ make best use of resources  

♦ do things once, together 

♦ implement decisions in member organisa�ons  

♦ AND ……… Challenge each other  

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Director for Children’s Services 

Improvement Update

Paul Boyce, DCS

Improvement Board, 27 February 2019

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 5b



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Summary of current 

practice

• Integrated front door and Complex Investigations: EDT taking appropriate 

actions and providing relevant information to IFD. New Head of Service of 

Complex Investigations Team.

• Assessment and Intervention and Child Protection: Homelessness protocol 

implemented in January. Improvement in system recording of attendance at 

Strategy meetings to review partner compliance.

• Permanency and planning for children: Dip sampling of audits showing 

improvements. Compliance with statutory timescales is good. Permanence 

Tracker developed. 

• Care leavers: Care leavers regularly ‘in touch’ – 100% compliance this month. 

• Fostering and Adoption: good matching with long-term foster placements, 

progress for adoption for children in care proceedings is better.

P
age 52



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Areas for development

• Continued work to reduce NFA contacts from 

partners

• Further work to reduce delay around pre-

proceedings 

• Increased evidence of early help needed

• Corporate parenting actions need to be more 

evident in care plans

P
age 53



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Input into current 

practice
• DfE Adviser coaching with Team Managers and 

Heads of Service

• Leadership and management review with DfE 

adviser

• Care and Pathway planning training, SMART 

outcome focused plans

• Parenting assessments implemented

• Cafcass facilitated court work training

P
age 54



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Workforce

• Marked reduction in agency workers in social care 

from previous month - 7 in one month period

• Permanent recruitment of agency workers has 

resulted in conversion of 58 people in last 12 months

• Reduction in sickness absence over last 12 months 

with average days lost now at 13.5 days

• Employment relation cases – 57 attendance 

management interventions and 12 disciplinary cases

• Wellbeing - #Bethedifference

P
age 55



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Ongoing service 

improvements

• Business Support review

• Early Help consultation

• SEND Improvement Plan

• Education Social Welfare Service

• Youth hub and Edge of care

• Fostering Service and Practice Improvement

• Sufficiency Strategy and Market Position 

Statement

P
age 56



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Partnership Working

• Continuing to improve relationships in practice

• Better compliance in Child Protection

• Wirral Together Partnership engagement

• Partnership for Children under development – 5th

March discussion

• MASA arrangements to go live on 31st March

• Community Matters

P
age 57



WIRRAL PLAN 2020

Making Wirral great for children, 

young people and families

Any questions?

P
age 58



The NHS Long Term Plan – 

A Brief Summary 

Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board 

20th March 2019 

 

Simon Banks, Chief Officer, Wirral Health and 
Care Commissioning 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 6a



Overview 
• NHS Long Term Plan to be published on 7th January 2019. 

• Full planning guidance, deliverables, CCG allocations and financial 
regime followed. 

• One year (2019/20) operational plans by organisation by 4th April 
2019. 

• Aggregated by Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships 
(STPs) and accompanied by a local system operational plan 
narrative. 

• Baseline for 5 year system strategic plans for Autumn 2019. 

• We will be producing a Healthy Wirral Operational Plan 2019/20 and 
Healthy Wirral 5 Year System Sustainability Strategy Plan. 

• This is about alignment and collaboration and a “shift left” to primary 
and community health services. 

 

P
age 60



Chapter 1: A new service model for  

the 21st century 
• Every patient will have the right to online ‘digital’ GP consultations. 

• Redesigned hospital support will be able to avoid up to a third of outpatient appointments. 

• GP practices - typically covering 30-50,000 people - will be funded to work together to deal with 

pressures in primary care and extend the range of convenient local services, creating genuinely 

integrated teams of GPs, community health and social care staff. 

• Expanded community health teams to provide fast support to people in their own homes as an 

alternative to hospitalisation. 

• Ramp up NHS support for people living in care homes.  

• Extension of ‘social prescribing’, personal health budgets, and new support for managing their 

own health in partnership with patients' groups and the voluntary sector.  

• Investment in primary medical and community services will grow faster than the overall NHS 

budget.  

• Reduce pressure on the emergency care system - new service channels such as urgent treatment 

centres, ‘same day emergency care’ model across all acute hospitals, new clinical standards for 

major trauma, stroke and other critical illnesses to ensure patients with the most serious 

emergencies get the best possible care.  

• Further action to cut delayed hospital discharges will help free up pressure on hospital beds.  

P
age 61



Our Healthy Wirral Neighbourhoods 

Birkenhead B 

Birkenhead A 

South Wirral A 

South Wirral B 

West Wirral B 

West Wirral A 

Wallasey A 

Wallasey B 

Wallasey C 

P
age 62



Chapter 2: More NHS action on 

prevention and health inequalities 
• Specific new evidence-based NHS prevention programmes to cut smoking; to reduce 

obesity, partly by doubling enrolment in the successful Type 2 NHS Diabetes 

Prevention Programme; to limit alcohol-related A&E admissions; and to lower air 

pollution.  

• To help tackle health inequalities, five year funding allocations to local areas to be 

based on a more accurate assessment of health inequalities and unmet need.  

• All major national programmes and every local area across England will be required 

to set out specific measurable goals and mechanisms by which they will contribute to 

narrowing health inequalities over the next five and ten years.  

• Specific action, for example to: cut smoking in pregnancy, and by people with long 

term mental health problems; ensure people with learning disability and/or autism get 

better support; provide outreach services to people experiencing homelessness; help 

people with severe mental illness find and keep a job; and improve uptake of 

screening and early cancer diagnosis for people who currently miss out.  

P
age 63



Chapter 3: Further Progress on Care 

Quality and Outcomes 
• The Plan goes further on the NHS Five Year Forward View’s focus on cancer, mental 

health, diabetes, multimorbidity and healthy ageing including dementia. 

• Extends focus to children’s health, maternity and neonatal services, cardiovascular 

and respiratory conditions, and learning disability and autism. 

• The Plan also allocates sufficient funds on a phased basis over the next five years to 

increase the number of planned operations and cut long waits.  

• Mental health services funding will grow faster than the overall NHS budget,  with a 

new ringfenced local investment fund worth at least £2.3 billion a year by 2023/24. 

This will enable further service expansion and faster access to community and crisis 

mental health services for both adults and particularly children and young people.  

• To enable these changes to the service model, to prevention, and to major clinical 

improvements, the Long Term Plan sets out how they will be backed by action on 

workforce, technology, innovation and efficiency, as well as the NHS’ overall ‘system 

architecture’.  

P
age 64



Chapter 4: NHS staff will get the 

backing they need 
• Workforce implementation plan and national workforce group. 

• Increase numbers of nurses, midwives, Allied Health Professionals and other staff. 

• Grow the medical workforce with a focus on more generalist roles and increase number of 
doctors working in general practice. 

• New arrangements to support international recruitment. 

• Focus on staff retention through workforce development and multi-professional 
credentialling. 

• Make the NHS a consistently great place to work and shape a modern employment culture. 

• Zero tolerance on violence towards NHS staff. 

• Increased focus on respect, equality and diversity. 

• Improved mental health support to doctors. 

• Productive working through electronic rosters and job planning. 

• New focus on leadership and talent management. 

• Encouragement for and investment in volunteering initiatives. 

P
age 65



Chapter 5: Digitally enabled care will 

go mainstream across the NHS 
• During 2019 we will introduce controls to ensure new systems purchased by the NHS comply with agreed 

standards, including those set out in The Future of Healthcare.  

• By 2020, five geographies will deliver a longitudinal health and care record platform linking NHS and local authority 

organisations, three additional areas will follow in 2021.  

• In 2020/21, people will have access to their care plan and communications from their care professionals via the 

NHS App; the care plan will move to the individual’s LHCR across the country over the next five years.  

• By summer 2021, we will have 100% compliance with mandated cyber security standards across all NHS 

organisations in the health and care system.  

• In 2021/22, we will have systems that support population health management in every Integrated Care System 

across England, with a Chief Clinical Information Officer (CCIO) or Chief Information Officer (CIO) on the board of 

every local NHS organisation.  

• By 2022/23, the Child Protection Information system will be extended to cover all health care settings, including 

general practices.  

• By 2023/24 every patient in England will be able to access a digital first primary care offer. 

• By 2024, secondary care providers in England, including acute, community and mental health care settings, will be 

fully digitised, including clinical and operational processes across all settings, locations and departments. Data will 

be captured, stored and transmitted electronically, supported by robust IT infrastructure and cyber security, and 

LHCRs will cover the whole country. 

P
age 66



Chapter 6: Taxpayers’ investment 

will be used to maximum effect 
• NHS England’s revenue funding to grow by an 

average of 3.4% in real terms over five years 
delivering a real terms increase of £20.5 billion by 
2023/24. 

• Deal with current pressures, demographic change 
and other costs, as well as new priorities. 

• Sustainable financial path and deliver service 
improvements. 

• Meet five “tests”. 

P
age 67



Chapter 7: Next Steps 
• New NHS Assembly in early 2019.  

• 2019/20 will be a transitional year to develop a detailed national implementation 

programme by autumn 2019.  

• Consensus proposals for how primary legislation might be adjusted to better support 

delivery of the agreed changes. 

• Recommended changes to: create publicly-accountable integrated care locally; to 

streamline the national administrative structures of the NHS; and remove the overly 

rigid competition and procurement regime applied to the NHS.  

• Within the current legal framework, the NHS and our partners will be moving to create 

Integrated Care Systems everywhere by April 2021. 

• ICSs bring together local organisations in a pragmatic and practical way to deliver the 

‘triple integration’ of primary and specialist care, physical and mental health services, 

and health with social care.  

• Key role in working with Local Authorities at ‘place’ level, and through ICSs, 

commissioners will make shared decisions with providers on population health, 

service redesign and Long Term Plan implementation.  

P
age 68



Appendix: Wider Social Goals 

• Health and employment 

• Health and the justice system 

• Veterans and Armed Forces 

• Care leavers 

• Health and the environment 

• The NHS as an “anchor institution”.  

P
age 69



Next Steps 

• Healthy Wirral System Operational Plan by April 2019. 

• Healthy Wirral 5 Year System Sustainability Plan by Autumn 2019. 

• Aligned to national priorities. 

• Incorporating local priorities and other “asks”. 

• Taking account of Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care 

Partnership Programmes. 

• Using the Healthy Wirral programme approach. 

P
age 70



More Information 

• NHS Long Term Plan: 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/  

• Planning Guidance and CCG Allocations: 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/deliver-forward-

view/  

P
age 71

https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/long-term-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/deliver-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/deliver-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/deliver-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/deliver-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/deliver-forward-view/


QUESTIONS? P
age 72



1

WIRRAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
20TH MARCH 2019

REPORT TITLE Healthy Wirral Programme Update

REPORT OF Chief Officer
NHS Wirral CCG and Wirral Health and Care 
Commissioning

REPORT SUMMARY
This matter affects all Wards within the Borough, and supports the delivery of both Wirral 

20/20 pledges in relation to Health and Wellbeing, and the delivery of Health and 

Wellbeing ambitions within ‘Wirral Together’.

In common with all health and care systems across Cheshire and Merseyside, Wirral is 

expected to establish and implement its plans to achieve the best possible health and 

wellbeing outcomes for its population within the funding available to the system.  The 

‘Healthy Wirral’ programme is seen as the prime system-wide programme to deliver 

sustainable and affordable long term changes to the way that the health and wellbeing of 

the Wirral Population is supported. 

The Healthy Wirral Programme has identified a mission of ‘Better health and wellbeing in 

Wirral by working together’ with the clearly stated aim to enable all people in Wirral to live 

longer and healthier lives by taking simple steps to improve their own health and  

wellbeing. By achieving this together we can provide the very best health and social care 

services when people really need them, as close to home as possible. Delivering this aim 

requires the Wirral partners to rise to four key challenges:

• Acting As One - exemplified in actions and behaviours.

• Clinical sustainability - sustainable, high quality, appropriately staffed, 

organisationally agnostic services.

• Improving population health - delivering the Healthy Wirral outcomes around 

better care and better health using a place based approach.

• Financial sustainability - managing with our allocation, taking cost out, avoiding 

costs, delivering efficiency and better value.

Page 73

Agenda Item 6b



2

This paper outlines the key actions that have been undertaken to date and the proposed 

next steps to progress the Healthy Wirral Programme.

RECOMMENDATION/S
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the contents of this report.

Page 74



3

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform the Health and Wellbeing Board, no further 

action by the Health and Wellbeing Board is required except to note the report.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1 The Healthy Wirral Programme represents a system wide approach to the 

commissioning and delivery of health and care transformation on Wirral in order to 

achieve clinically and financially sustainable place based care. As such there is no 

alternative option to consider for the system.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION
3.1 The Healthy Wirral programme progress against key objectives is reported to the 

Healthy Wirral Partners Board on a monthly basis.  A summary of our progress to 

date in 2018-19 is provided in Appendix 1 

3.2 System Operating Plan for Wirral
Following the agreement of the 5-year settlement for the NHS and the development 

of the NHS Long Term Plan, guidance has been provided to clarify the expectations 

of all integrated care system to produce organisational level and coherent system 

level operational plans for 2019-20.  This year is identified as a foundation year to 

lay out the groundwork for implementation of the long term plan and the up-front 

funding for providers is given with the requirement that each NHS organisation 

delivers its agreed financial position. The production of operating plans for 2019/20 

will support the development of a broader 5-year strategic system plan.  In addition 

to delivering the requirements of the NHS Long Term Plan, Healthy Wirral partners 

have recognised this as an opportunity to set out our ambitions for place based 

population health and care and align this with Wirral system planning including the 

Wirral 2030 plan.

3.2.1 Operating Plan for 2019/20
As an outcome of a Healthy Wirral system event in November 2018 and 

subsequent discussions, partners have committed to a joint approach to the 

Page 75



4

completion of a Wirral System Operating Plan. Following the publication of full 

guidance by NHS England in January, system partners, led by the Healthy Wirral 

have worked to deliver the expected milestones, and submitted a draft system 

operating plan on 12 February 2019. The final plan is due to be submitted to the 

Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership by 4 April 2019. Key to this 

plan will be alignment with system partner operational plans particularly in respect 

of strategic intent and priorities, financial and activity assumptions.

The Healthy Wirral Partners Board will have oversight of the delivery of the plan and 

will be expected to review the draft plan and approve the final version.

3.2.2 5 Year Strategic Plan
 The 2019/20 Operating Plan described above will provide the basis for system 

discussions and activity to establish and agree a Healthy Wirral 5-year Strategic 

Plan.  It is expected that a draft plan will be completed in July 2019 in preparation 

for submission in the autumn of 2019.  A programme of activity for system partners 

will be established to ensure system engagement and input into the plan.

3.3 Healthy Wirral Programme Governance and Infrastructure
Following discussions with the Healthy Wirral Chair and SRO and with key system 

partners a review of the current Healthy Wirral governance structures has been 

undertaken. It was recognised that whilst the current structures and processes have 

effectively supported the development of system wide support for the agreed 

programme there was a need to undertake a critical appraisal of governance to 

ensure that it meets our future planning and delivery needs, namely:

 Ensuring that the overall programme is aligned to local and national strategic 

intent around place based health and care systems

 Ensuring that there is robust and effective scrutiny and oversight of the key 

programmes and assurance that they are delivering the expected better health, 

better care and better value benefits.

 Establishing governance processes that are simple to navigate, avoid 

duplication of effort and ensure system partner accountability.

3.3.1 Programme Governance
The amendments to the governance structure aim to establish a reporting 

structure that is simpler to navigate, establishes clear programme and 

Page 76



5

senior executive accountability to the Healthy Wirral Partners Board for the 

delivery of programme plan objectives, and ensures that the board are more 

clearly sighted on progress and programme barriers.  The key changes are 

summarised below:

 Primary system programmes are directly accountable to the partners 

board which assumes a clear portfolio programme board function.  This 

will require an extension to the board role and time commitment 

estimated at one half day per month to achieve this

 Each primary programme is mandated to establish a clear programme 

delivery group, chaired by an executive system lead who is accountable 

to the board for the progress of the individual programme, and ensures 

that regular highlight reports are established and the overall programme 

dashboard is maintained for their portfolio highlighting progress and 

project risks/ issues in delivering the defined programme benefits

 The scope and primacy of key programmes is amended to reflect their 

fundamental role in delivering a sustainable place based system plan.  

This is covered in more detail in 3.3.2

 The formal governance stages currently undertaken by the Healthy 

Wirral Executive Delivery Group (HWEDG) and Healthy Wirral 

Operational Delivery Group (HWODG) are discontinued.  This will help 

create system capacity to provide more focused support for the portfolio 

of programmes referred to in the diagram below as the Portfolio 

Management Group.

 These changes are represented in the diagram below:

Page 77



6

3.3.2 Programme Infrastructure
The critical review of the range and scope of work streams within the overall 

Healthy Wirral programme has recommended the following changes:

 The fundamental component of a place based health and care system on Wirral 

has been agreed to be the development of Neighbourhoods/ Primary Care 

Networks. As such this is core to the Healthy Wirral model and system focus 

needs to remain on the establishment and growth of neighbourhoods. The 

primary delivery work streams will be expected to articulate how their 

programme priorities and outcomes will support this and be delivered through 

the agency of neighbourhoods.

 A number of programmes previously identified as ‘enabling’ have been shown 

to either be fundamental to the establishment of ‘place’ on Wirral, or to have the 

potential to deliver tangible and measurable system benefits.  These include the 

following:

o People and Workforce Development which is fundamental to the 

future place based workforce requirements.

Page 78



7

o Medicines Optimisation which has identified significant financial and 

non-financial benefits

o Population Health encompasses the primary effort required to build 

and use our population intelligence to understand and design 

approaches to improve population health.  It also encompasses key 

public health approaches to influence lifestyle and wellbeing 

improvement, including social prescribing

 In delivering system sustainability it has been recognised that a number of 

key work programmes deliver non-clinical or infrastructural change, for 

example back office rationalisation or shared services, and as such should 

be recognised as a primary programme. 

 A number of the enabling work streams relate to digital development and the 

use of technology. It is suggested that further work is undertaken to establish 

a digital strategy for Wirral and identify how these programmes could be 

combined to support the delivery of this strategy.

 The four ‘information and shaping’ programmes are arguably either 

contextual to the wider Healthy Wirral programme rather than specifically 

dependent work streams, for example ‘Wirral Together’, or form part of the 

core business and quality approaches for the programme.  It is therefore 

proposed that these are not identified as specific work streams.

These changes are summarised in the diagram below:

Page 79



8

3.4 Programme Support and Rigour

In order that system leaders are ensuring that the overall programme is aligned to 

local and national strategic intent around place based health and care systems 

there is a clear need for the system to have sufficient shared infrastructure to 

effectively manage local and external expectations and requirements. This has led 

to the proposal for the development of a Healthy Wirral Portfolio Management and 

Delivery team to incorporate named leads for each programme area drawn from the 

system to support the delivery of the programme, including finance, business 

intelligence, PMO, I.T and where necessary HR. This will ensure effective delivery 

at pace for all core programmes.  This is also a key step towards development of a 

broader range of shared services and could expand to other functions such as 

Medicines Optimisation. 

Page 80



9

3.5 Neighbourhood Development
Work is continuing to establish the Neighbourhood teams supported by the 

Neighbourhood Transformation manager to ensure that a resilient approach is 

adopted. The Neighbourhood co-ordinator G.Ps leadership has been fundamental 

in supporting this work alongside system partners.  Key developments in this period 

are outlined below:

3.5.1 Target Operating Model 
Design and development work on the neighbourhood multi-disciplinary team 

(MDT) is continuing, and additional programme support is being deployed 

from our phase 1 transformation fund to increase pace on this work.  An 

outline target operating model has been developed in partnership with key 

system partners including primary and community care, commissioners and 

3rd sector colleagues and will establish the operating principles common to 

all neighbourhood teams. System partners are responding to this with 

detailed plans as t how their teams will operate within the multi-disciplinary 

team.

Work is underway with primary care colleagues to understand how the 

proposals set out in the new G.P contract including the direct enhanced 

services for primary care networks will align with the neighbourhoods to 

ensure this builds on the good work already established.

3.5.2 Neighbourhood Summit
A Neighbourhood Summit took place on 22nd February to share current 

developments within commissioning, provision and community development 

on Wirral and how these could link with the overall neighbourhood vision 

and development. This event was well attended by key partners from 

across the Wirral Health and Care system

3.5.3 3rd Sector Pilots
Working alongside Age UK Wirral a Personal Independence Co-ordinator 

model has been piloted within a number of primary care settings.  This aims 

to provide pro-active risk stratification of patient data and targeted 

engagement with those patients who would most benefit from the holistic 

Page 81



10

support of a Personal Independence Co-ordinator (PIC), who undertakes a 

detailed guided conversation with individuals and develops a personal 

action plan addressing all of an individual’s nonclinical / social needs. 

 

This model has been trialled through a focus on identification of frail 

patients risk stratified as being in the last 12-18 months of life, having the 

highest number of appointments in the last 12 months at their GP Surgery 

or presenting the most number of times at Accident and Emergency in the 

last 12 months 

 

Early data from a small cohort of patients have shown significant social 

outcomes, including increased integration between the third sector and 

primary care, improved social support, increased resilience and self-care 

and increased income.   Some significant system outcomes would indicate 

a comparative reduction in GP appointments following the intervention of a 

PIC worker and a reduction in unplanned, non-elective admissions for the 

cohort of people.

3.5.4 Organisational Development
The system lead for the People and Workforce Development programme 

delivery has commenced in role and has successfully recruited HR 

technical support, with OD support to follow, supporting both Wirral and 

West Cheshire place programmes. Work will shortly commence with Wirral 

neighbourhoods to undertake a capability gap analysis using the ‘Aligning 

Capability’ model which will support the development of a clear People and 

Workforce plan for neighbourhoods and a comprehensive system wide 

strategy and People plan for the delivery of place based care at a 

neighbourhood level across Wirral and Cheshire West 

Work has continued to implement a leadership programme for 

neighbourhoods, supported by the North West Leadership Academy. Both 

Wirral and Cheshire West will be working as partners alongside the 

organisation North West Employers to design and deliver the programme 

which will commence in spring 2019 with a diagnostic and team building 

Page 82



11

event to support neighbourhood leaders in identifying their leadership 

issues and needs.

3.6 Specific Programme Progress
3.6.1 Right Care

As part of the ‘Planned Care’ primary programme the work stream team are 

engaging with the NHS Right Care local delivery partner. Data packs can be 

tailored to all the key work streams and can provide both strategic, high 

level comparisons, but also, very detailed local (e.g. practice by practice) 

comparisons that identify variation. Also, the currencies used are not 

restricted to finance, but can focus on avoidable mortality and morbidity and 

on reducing unnecessary acute bed days. The immediate focus with Right 

Care will be on Respiratory, CVD and Gastroenterology as these areas 

align fully with both commissioning and Healthy Wirral plan priorities.

3.6.2 Population Health Intelligence and Wirral Care Record
Work has continued to progress in the development of population health 

intelligence to support our place based system.  A workshop was held 

earlier in the year to bring wider system partners together to start to identify 

the bigger ‘system questions’ that population health intelligence should 

support.  A skills audit of all business intelligence provision across Wirral 

has been undertaken, and system partners are reviewing this to look at how 

intelligence support can be better integrated across the system.   An 

analytics subgroup of system business intelligence leads has been 

established to support this work and develop integration at all levels.

In support of the management of frailty at neighbourhood level a real time 

Frailty Dashboard has been developed.   This is now live and 

communication sent to all Wirral GP Practices.  Work is continuing to 

develop further neighbourhood analytics for inclusion in this Dashboard.

 

3.7 Working with Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership
The Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership (C&M HCP) has 

identified a vision of improving the health and wellbeing of the 2.6 million population 

Page 83



12

of Cheshire and Merseyside and creating a strong, safe and sustainable health and 

care system that is fit for the future. Through their business plan to deliver this 

vision C&M HCP have identified three key priorities for 2018-19 which are:

 Delivering care more efficiently

 Improving the quality of care

 Improving the health and care of the population

The key vehicles identified for the delivery of these priorities are place based care at 

a local system level and improving population health management. The Healthy 

Wirral Programme has been designed primarily to deliver the required changes 

identified by and needed for Wirral, but this dovetails fully with the ambitions of this 

wider partnership, which provides support and positive challenge to the system.

The Healthy Wirral team are continuing to work in close partnership with C&M HCP 

to support both Wirral and wider system delivery of ‘place’. Early drafts of a ‘Plan on 

a Page’ summarising our Place development vision, deliverables and outcomes has 

been used to support the development of an approach for the whole system in 

Cheshire and Merseyside.  This plan is provided at Appendix 1. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Wirral Health and Care system continues to face significant challenges to 

achieve financial recovery and sustainability. The summary projected financial 

position as of February 2019 is provided below:

Plan Actual Variance

Plan     
Surplus / 
(Deficit)

Likley 
Surplus / 
(Deficit)

Likely 
Variance to 

Plan

Best     
Surplus / 
(Deficit)

Best 
Variance to 

Plan

Worse 
Surplus / 
(Deficit)

Worst 
Variance to 

Plan
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,001 £,002

CWP 124 155 31 254 254 0 254 0 198 (56)
Wirral Community 1,743 1,754 11 1,993 1,993 0 2,393 400 (1,440) (3,433)
WUTH (21,668) (26,603) (4,935) (25,042) (30,555) (5,513) (30,555) (5,513) (32,291) (7,249)
Wirral CCG 1,092 (2,004) (3,096) 2,000 (3,000) (5,000) (2,229) (4,229) (7,948) (9,948)
Contract mis-alignment & Risks 0 0 (2,000) (2,000) 0 0
Wirral LA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total (18,709) (26,698) (7,989) (20,795) (33,308) (12,513) (30,137) (9,342) (41,481) (20,686)
Previous period (7,331)
Movement on prev period (658)

I&E Performance (Incl. STF)             
Surplus / (Deficit)

I&E Performance to date I&E Forecast

The table above shows an adverse movement from December of £0.7m and is now 

£8m off plan to January 2019.  The key areas to note are as follows: 

 

Page 84



13

 Wirral University Teaching Hospitals (£4,935k adverse variance) 

This contract is showing a YTD underperformance of c£2.0m (this is inclusive 

of contractual penalties applied of c£8.5m).   The main areas of 

underperformance are elective activity. Emergency activity has been strong 

throughout the year supported by a more complex case-mix.  The forecast 

position included an expectation that this would continue throughout the 

Winter period. This has not materialised and coincides with the opening of 

the “step-down” facility.  Year to date under performance in specialist 

neonatal activity, and elective activity with other associate CCG’s have also 

impacted.  

 

 Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group (£3,096 adverse variance) 

This variance largely relates to underperformance of the QIPP plan with 

slippage against a number of schemes, mainly Frailty, Commissioned Out of 

Hospital packages of Care and Prescribing.  There has also been significant 

overspending (£5.2m) within Commissioned out-of-Hospital packages of 

Care which is also contributing to this adverse variance.  Although there is a 

high risk of QIPP non delivery a number of mitigations are being considered 

and progressed with a view to recover this position to the forecast £3m deficit 

at year end 

The Healthy Wirral programme recognises and supports the aspiration to live within 

our means as a system and the aim to maximise the value of the Wirral pound, by 

ensuring that this is invested in place based care that will deliver evidenced based, 

quantifiable quality outcomes for the population of the Wirral. A key outcome of the 

current programme will be the development of a whole system plan to achieve 

system financial sustainability, through service transformation and the delivery of 

system wide QUIPP and CIP programmes.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
The Healthy Wirral programme will be delivered within the statutory and legal 

frameworks set for health and care in England.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

Page 85



14

These are being considered within the Healthy Wirral programme and provided by 

the participant organisations.  

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

The Healthy Wirral Partners Board has developed a Board Assurance Framework 

that will identify the principles risks to the delivery of the strategic programme aims 

and how these will be mitigated. The most significant risks are a further 

deterioration of the financial position of the Wirral health and care economy and of 

associated clinical and performance standards.  These can only be mitigated by the 

adoption of an “acting as one” approach to sustainability planning.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

Engagement and consultation will take place as the programme progresses at all 

stages. Communications and Engagement is identified as a key enabling work 

stream for the programme and a communications and engagement strategy is 

being developed.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
The Healthy Wirral programme will give due regard to the need to eliminate 

discrimination, harassment and victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity, 

and to foster good relations between people and who share a protected 

characteristic (as cited under the Equality Act 2010) and those who do not share it.  

The Healthy Wirral programme will also give regard to the need to reduce 

inequalities between patients in access to, and outcomes from health and care 

services and to ensure services are provided in an integrated ways where this might 

reduce health inequalities. Moreover the Healthy Wirral programme comprises a 

wide range of delivery projects and the governance structures in place for the 

programme require the work streams to individually review their equality, quality and 

privacy impact assessments.

REPORT AUTHOR: Julian Eyre 
Healthy Wirral Programme Manager
telephone:  (0151) 651 0011 ext 401169
email:  Julian.eyre@nhs.net

Page 86

mailto:Julian.eyre@nhs.net


15

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 Healthy Wirral Plan on a Page

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 87



16

Appendix 1: Healthy Wirral Plan on a Page

Page 88



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
DATE: 20 MARCH 2019

REPORT TITLE WIRRAL HEALTH PROTECTION 
CHALLENGES: A CALL TO ACTION

REPORT OF  Acting Director for Health and Wellbeing

REPORT SUMMARY
This report outlines the call to action made of Health and Care Partners to prioritise and 
work as a system to ensure we have robust health protection arrangements in place and 
deliver against three identified health protection priorities.

Background

Health protection is a set of functions which acts to protect individuals, groups and 
populations from the impact of infectious diseases, environmental hazards as well as 
ensuring we are prepared for and respond to emergencies. It is an essential part of 
achieving and maintaining good health for Wirral residents. 

Protecting the public from hazards has a long history. As far back as the early 19th 

century Medical Officers of Health were implementing strategies aimed at improving 
environmental conditions, for example by providing clean drinking water, safe sewage 
disposal, and safer working conditions.

Health protection issues in Wirral remain as they;
o are the causes of significant morbidity and mortality in the borough
o create avoidable and preventable harm
o contribute to health inequalities - many infectious diseases and environmental 

hazards such as poor air quality often affects our most vulnerable residents; 
children and older people, people living in less affluent areas.

o are costly: health protection interventions are cost-saving, both to health services as 
well as the wider economy.

Key Issues

Developments in the way we improve the health of individuals, communities and 
populations must be accompanied by a renewed focus on the basics of how we protect 
our communities from infectious diseases and environmental hazards. In addition, we 
must adapt and respond to new threats such as antimicrobial resistance and a rise in 
healthcare associated infections.

We have reviewed local data and highlighted three priorities which we consider require 
sustained action across the local health and care system to reduce the burden from health 
protection issues. These are:

Page 89

Agenda Item 6c



2

1) The development of a system wide approach to Infection Prevention and Control 
in order to reduce the incidence of healthcare associated infections 

2) Reducing antimicrobial resistance 
3) Reducing the variation and uptake of cancer screening and national 

immunisation programmes.

These priorities provide a targeted focus on key challenges where improvement is 
required, or needs are greatest. We will, in addition, continue to assure that statutory 
duties to protect health are discharged and that local organisations are resilient to threats 
to health through effective planning and preparation as well as being equipped to respond 
to incidents, outbreaks and emergencies.

The Wirral Health Protection Group has responsibility to ensure that Wirral has a robust 
health protection system which effectively controls and prevents population level health 
issues. Multi-agency groups will drive delivery against the three identified priorities. The 
Wirral Health Protection Group will escalate risks to the Healthy Wirral Executive Directors 
Group and Healthy Wirral Partners Board as required.

No single agency can address these challenges in isolation nor can the Health Protection 
Group deliver these priorities independently. In order to deliver the action plans outlined for 
each of the three health protection priorities we need all Healthy Wirral Partners to renew 
their focus upon these priorities and commit to action. 

RECOMMENDATION/S
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

 Note the Call to Action for Healthy Wirral Partners to prioritise and work as a 
system to ensure we have robust health protection arrangements in place 

 Support delivery against the three identified health protection priorities 

Page 90



3

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

No single agency can address these challenges in isolation nor can the Health 
Protection Group deliver these priorities independently. In order to deliver the 
action plans outlined for each of the three health protection priorities we need all 
partners to renew their focus upon these priorities and commit to action.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
N/A

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/A

5.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
N/A

6.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
N/A

7.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
N/A

8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

REPORT AUTHOR: Name: Dr Elspeth Anwar
Role:   Consultant in Public Health 
telephone:  0151 666 5177
email:   elspethanwar@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
N/A

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 
 

WIRRAL HEALTH PROTECTION CHALLENGES: 
A CALL TO ACTION 

 
Health protection is a set of functions which acts to protect individuals, groups and 
populations from the impact of infectious diseases, environmental hazards as well as 
ensuring we are prepared for and respond to emergencies. It is an essential part of 
achieving and maintaining good health for Wirral residents. 

 
Protecting the public from hazards has a long history. As far back as the early 19th 

century Medical Officers of Health were implementing strategies aimed at improving 
environmental conditions, for example by providing clean drinking water, safe 
sewage disposal, and safer working conditions. 

 
This long history can sometimes lead to the assumption that the control of infectious 
diseases and environmental hazards are needed less now than in the past. This is 
not the case. 

 
Developments in the way we improve the health of individuals, communities 
and populations must be accompanied by a renewed focus on the basics of 
how we protect our communities from infectious diseases and environmental 
hazards. In addition we must adapt and respond to new threats such as 
antimicrobial resistance and a rise in healthcare associated infections. 

 
No single agency can address this issue in isolation protecting the health of the 
people of Wirral from infectious diseases and environmental hazards is everybody’s 
business. 

 
This report is a call to action for Healthy Wirral Partners to prioritise and work as a 
system to ensure we have robust health protection arrangements in place and 
deliver against identified health protection priorities. 

 
 

WHY FOCUS ON HEALTH PROTECTION? 
 
 It is a cause of significant morbidity and mortality in Wirral 

 
 The harm caused is avoidable and preventable 

 
 It contributes to health inequalities. Many infectious diseases and environmental 

hazards often affect our most vulnerable residents; children and older people, 
people living in less affluent areas. 

 
 Health protection interventions are cost-saving, both to health services as well as 

the wider economy. 

1  
Page 93



 
 

 

 
HEALTH PROTECTION PRIORITIES FOR WIRRAL 2018-2020 

 
We have reviewed local data and this has highlighted three priorities which we 
consider require sustained action across the health and care system. These are: 

 
1) The development of a system wide approach to Infection Prevention and Control 

in order to reduce the incidence of healthcare associated infections 
 
2) Reducing antimicrobial resistance 

 
3) Reducing the variation and uptake of cancer screening and national immunisation 

programmes. 
 
These priorities provide a targeted focus on key challenges where improvement is 
required or needs are greatest. In addition, we will continue to assure that statutory 
duties to protect health are discharged and that local organisations are resilient to 
threats to health through effective planning and preparation as well as being 
equipped to respond to incidents, outbreaks and emergencies. 

 
The local health protection system must work as part of a broader network across 
Cheshire and Merseyside contributing to the development of health protection 
functions delivered by Public Health England and NHS England as well as working 
with other local areas to maximise our resources, reduce duplication and share best 
practice. 

2  
Page 94



 
 

 

 
1) The development of a system wide approach to Infection Prevention and 

Control in order to reduce the incidence of healthcare associated infections 
 

 
Case for 
change 

 
Health care Acquired Infections (HCAIs) pose a serious risk to 
patients, staff and visitors. They also incur significant costs to the 
Wirral health and care system and cause significant morbidity and 
mortality to those infected: 

 
• HCAIs lead to people spending an average of 11 days in 

hospital - 2.5 times longer than non-infected patients. 
 

• Patients with a HCAI are 7 times more likely to die in the 
hospital than uninfected patients. 

 
Preventing such avoidable infections will therefore improve patient 
outcomes and help reduce costs across the heath and care 
economy. 

 
Local Infection Prevention and Control (IPC) Services work across 
health and social care setting to reduce healthcare associated 
infections (HCAIs). However infection prevention control needs to be 
everybody’s business. 

 
Current 
performance 

 
The Wirral health and care system currently faces several issues 
related to poor infection prevention and control practices: 

 
High rates of HCAIs: 

 
• C. difficile rates for Wirral were higher than England and the 

North West for 2017/18 
• E. coli rates for Wirral were higher than England and the North 

West for 2017/18 
 
Transmission in health and care settings in 2017-18: 

 
• Scabies outbreaks (Wirral University Teaching Hospital, four 

Care Homes) 
• Flu (approx. 1000 admissions during 2017/18) 
• Norovirus (ward and visitor closures) 
• Recurrent outbreaks of influenza and diarrhoea and vomiting 

in care homes 
• Carbapenem Resistant Gram Negative Bacteria (CRE) – 

during 2017/18 Wirral University Teaching Hospital was one of 
four North West Trusts with ongoing transmission. 

3  
Page 95



 
 

 

 
 

 
System 
Priorities 

 
In order to reduce the incidence of healthcare associated infections 
(HCAI) we will ensure effective system wide infection prevention and 
control (IPC) measures are in place across the whole Wirral health 
and care economy. We will seek assurance that: 

 
 Medical leadership for IPC has been identified (via a dedicated 

Primary Care/CCG Lead). 
 Current WHCC commissioning arrangements are being utilised to 

prioritise the basics e.g. bare below the elbow, hand hygiene. 
 Options for integrated Specialist IPC Services are being explored. 
 A whole system communications campaign across health care 

providers to promote IPC basics has been developed under 
leadership of Directors of Nursing and Medical Directors. 

 A self-assessment and improvement review has been undertaken 
and a local plan has been developed to reduce E. coli 
bloodstream infections 

 A system approach for HCAI Post Infection Review has been 
developed and agreed to ensure improvements are embedded 
and sustained 

 Infection prevention control practice requirements for care homes 
with a focus on Transfer 2 assess beds have been developed. 

 
Outcomes 

 
• Observed reduction in Health care Acquired Infections 
• Reduction in transmission and outbreaks within health and care 

settings 
 
Accountable 
Lead/ Group 

 
Wirral Infection Prevention and Control Forum 

4  
Page 96



 
 

 

 
2) REDUCING ANTIMICROBIAL RESISTANCE 

 
 
Case for 
change 

 
There are few public health issues of greater importance than 
antimicrobial resistance (AMR) in terms of impact on society. 

 
Unlike many other drugs used in medicine, the more we use 
antibiotics the less effective they become against their target 
organisms. Overuse or inappropriate use of antibiotics allows 
bacteria to develop resistance which can lead to infections that are 
increasingly difficult to treat. Infections caused by resistant 
microorganisms often fail to respond to the standard treatment, 
resulting in prolonged illness, higher health care expenditure, and a 
greater risk of death. 

 
Coupled to this, the development pipeline for new antibiotics is at an 
all-time low. We must therefore conserve the antibiotics we have left 
by using them optimally. 

 
Current 
performance 

 
Antibiotic prescribing in Wirral has reduced in recent years, however 
when compared to other areas Wirral still prescribes more antibiotics 
and more of these are broad spectrum antibiotics (the more we use 
these antibiotics the less effective they become against their target 
organisms). 

 
During 2017/18: 

 
• Wirral was ranked 40th (where 1 is the worst) out of 195 CCGs for 

antibiotic prescribing 
• Wirral was ranked 22nd (where 1 is the worst) out of 195 CCGs 

for broad spectrum antibiotic prescribing 
 
System 
Priorities 

 
Preventing infections from occurring in the first place is one of the 
best ways to reduce the need to prescribe antibiotics and prevent 
antimicrobial resistance (AMR) – See Priority 1: above). 

 
In order to reduce antimicrobial resistance we will seek assurance 
that: 

 
 Every Trust has an AMR action plan 
 We have implemented back-up prescribing for the treatment of 

upper respiratory tract infections 
 We have ensured consistent messages are given by all 

prescribers and all pharmacists. 
 AMR awareness, stewardship and training is delivered to all 

5  
Page 97



 
 

 

 
 
 prescribers, non-medical prescribers and healthcare workers. 

 We have delivered public facing media campaigns to aid and 
inform about AMR e.g. European antibiotic awareness day in mid- 
November 

 We have identified dedicated GP, microbiologist and pharmacist 
time to support AMR stewardship 

 Primary and secondary care formularies align 
 Every Trust has implemented the PHE Start Smart – Then Focus 

Toolkit 
 Every GP practice is implementing TARGET (Treat Antibiotics 

Responsibly, Guidance, Education, Tools) 

 
Outcomes 

 
• Reduction in antibiotic prescribing (all antibiotics) 
• Reductions in antibiotic prescribing (broad spectrum) 

 
Accountable 
Lead/ Group 

 
Wirral AMR Strategy Group 

6  
Page 98



 
 

 

 
3) REDUCE VARIATION IN UPTAKE OF CANCER SCREENING AND NATIONAL 

IMMUNISATION PROGRAMMES 
 
Case for 
change 

 
Screening is a process of identifying apparently healthy people who 
are at increased risk of a disease or condition. They can then be 
offered information, further tests or treatment. In England we have a 
range of screening programmes including for breast, cervical and 
bowel cancer, abdominal aortic aneurysm (AAA), diabetic 
retinopathy, antenatal screening, and new-born screening. 

 
The national childhood vaccination programme protects children 
against diseases such as diphtheria, tetanus, whooping cough, 
polio, meningitis, mumps, measles and rubella. The annual flu 
vaccination programme offers free flu vaccination to primary school 
children, those over 65 years of age and those with a long-term 
health condition. Those over 65 are also offered protection from 
pneumonia and shingles via annual vaccinations. 

 
Screening and immunisations are cost effective and clinically 
effective approaches to improving population health. Both are key 
aspects of statutory requirement for the local health system and 
meeting nationally agreed coverage and uptake targets are an 
important indicator of quality. 

 
Current 
Performance 

 
Whilst on the whole uptake for both screening and immunisation 
across Wirral is in line with, or above, national average there is 
variation within the borough. Due to the effectiveness in improving 
health outcomes, inequalities in uptake and coverage exacerbates 
health inequalities. 

 
• Cancer screening uptake for Wirral in 2017 was 77.1% (breast), 

72.8% (cervical) and 57.7% (bowel). Wirral performs better than 
the national average for breast and cervical screening, but 
performs slightly worse for bowel screening. 

• MMR uptake (both dose 1 and 2) has fallen below the 95% 
target for herd immunity. 

• For the 2017-18 flu season uptake was above the 75% target for 
vaccination of adults 65 years and over. However flu vaccine 
uptake among pregnant women, at risk groups and primary 
school children were all below targets. 

• There is variation in screening and immunisation uptake across 
GP practices within the borough 

7  
Page 99



 
 

 

 
 
  

 
System 
Priorities 

 
In order to reduce variation in uptake of cancer screening and 
national immunisation programmes we will seek assurance that we 
have: 

 
 Developed a Screening and Immunisations Locality Plan for 

Wirral, identifying key actions and clarifying roles and 
responsibilities. Initial focus on improving bowel cancer 
screening, cervical cancer screening and 0-5 immunisations 
uptake rates. 

 Developed screening and immunisation intelligence packs for 
the nine neighbourhood to allow practices to see their variation 
in relation to the local peer practices. 

 Ensured all practices have screening and immunisation 
programme plans in place, and we have agreed processes for 
sharing and spreading best practice 

 Developed and implemented a shared communications and 
marketing plan aimed at increasing the uptake of screening and 
immunisations and reducing inequality in uptake, taking account 
of national campaigns and agreed local priorities 

 
Outcome 

 
Increased uptake and reduced variation by GP practice in 
Screening and immunisation rates 

 
Accountable 
Lead/ Group 

 
Wirral Screening and Immunisation Group 

8  
Page 100



 
 

 

 
ENSURING WE DELIVER OUR HEALTH PROTECTION PRIORITIES 

 
The Wirral Health Protection Group has responsibility to ensure that Wirral has a 
robust health protection system which effectively controls and prevents population 
level health issues. Members of the local health protection system represented on 
the Wirral Health Protection Group include: 

 
 

PUBLIC HEALTH 
ENGLAND 

 
 
 

NHS ENGLAND EMERGENCY 
PLANNING 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
HEALTH 

WIRRAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH 

 

 
 

NHS WIRRAL 
 
 
The governance arrangements for the Wirral health Protection Group are displayed 
below. Multi-agency groups will drive delivery against the three identified priorities. 
The Wirral Health Protection Group will escalate risks up to the Healthy Wirral 
Executive Directors Group and Healthy Wirral Partners Board as required. 

 

 

9  
Page 101



 
 

 

 
To work effectively the Wirral Health Protection Group is dependent on the following: 

• Comprehensive surveillance systems to identify threats and for preparing, 
planning and responding to health protection concerns and emergencies 

• Access to robust data and intelligence at the right level/time 
• Effective communications and marketing 
• Information sharing between local partners 
• Shared leadership and collaborative accountability 
• Commitment to workforce training and development 
• Tools and techniques to test plans 
• Mobilisation of system resources, including staff, to support priorities 
• Localised solutions tailored to community assets 
• Priorities embedded into commissioning plans and contracts 

 
 
 
HEALTH PROTECTION IS EVERYBODY’S BUSINESS 

 
No single agency can address these challenges in isolation nor can the Health 
Protection Group deliver these priorities independently. In order to deliver the action 
plans outlined for each of the three health protection priorities we need all Healthy 
Wirral partners to renew their focus upon these priorities and commit to action. 

10  
Page 102



NHS England Quarterly Report to Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board

November 2018

1. Purpose of this report 

The aim of this report is to update Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board regarding the 
activities and responsibilities of NHS England. This report outlines the national and 
regional activities November 2018 to February 2019 together with specific updates 
on priorities of NHS England (Cheshire and Merseyside).

2. NHS England and NHS Improvement 

2.1 Senior Leadership

As part of closer working arrangements between the two organisations, NHS 
England and NHS Improvement have announced a new joint senior leadership team 
- the NHS Executive Group. This will be led by Simon Stevens as the Chief 
Executive of NHS England, who will lead both organisations. A single, combined 
post of Chief Operating Officer covering both organisations will be created and 
advertised shortly. This role will report directly to Simon Stevens. The Chief 
Operating Officer will, for regulatory purposes, also be the identified Chief Executive 
of NHS Improvement. The seven Regional Directors, the National Director of 
Emergency and Elective Care and the National Director for Improvement will report 
directly to the new Chief Operating Officer.

Seven new Regional Directors have also been appointed and join the NHS 
Executive Group 

The NHS Executive Group held its first meeting in January 2019, with the new 
national and regional directors expected to formally lead their integrated directorates 
by April 2019.

2.2 North West Regional Director for NHS England and NHS Improvement.

Bill McCarthy was announced as the North West Regional Director for NHS England 
and NHS Improvement in December 2018 and started in post on 1st February 2019.

Bill was previously Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Operations) and Honorary Professor of 
Health Policy at the University of Bradford and Chair of Bradford Teaching Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust. In an earlier role he was the Government’s principal policy 
adviser on health reforms and has served on various national bodies including the 
NHS Constitution Forum and the Health and Local Government Strategy Board. An 
economist by profession, he has held many senior public service appointments 

Page 103

Agenda Item 8a



2

including Director-General at the Department of Health, Chief Executive at City of 
York Council, Chief Executive of NHS Yorkshire and the Humber and, most recently, 
National Policy Director at NHS England. Bill was appointed a Non-Executive 
Director at Bradford Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust on 1 November 2015, and 
Chair on 1 November 2016.

3. Strategy and planning 

3.1 The NHS Long Term Plan

The NHS Long Term Plan was published in January 2019. This has been developed 
in response to the commitment made by the Government of more funding for the 
NHS for each of the next five years, with an average increase of 3.4% a year. In 
return, the NHS was asked to come together to develop a long-term plan for the 
service, detailing our ambitions for improvement over the next decade, and our plans 
to meet them over the five years of the funding settlement. 

It was developed through working groups engaging with an extensive rage of 
stakeholders to set out a range of specific ideas and ambitions for how the NHS can 
improve over the next decade, covering all three life stages:

 Making sure everyone gets the best start in life
 Delivering world-class care for major health problems
 Supporting people to age well 

Table 1. What the NHS Long Term Plan will deliver for patients  

Making sure everyone gets the best start in life
 reducing stillbirths and mother and child deaths during birth by 50% 
 ensuring most women can benefit from continuity of carer through and beyond 

their pregnancy, targeted towards those who will benefit most
 providing extra support for expectant mothers at risk of premature birth 
 expanding support for perinatal mental health conditions 
 taking further action on childhood obesity 
 increasing funding for children and young people’s mental health
 bringing down waiting times for autism assessments 
 providing the right care for children with a learning disability
 delivering the best treatments available for children with cancer, including 

CAR-T and proton beam therapy.

Page 104



3

Delivering world-class care for major health problems
 preventing 150,000 heart attacks, strokes and dementia cases 
 providing education and exercise programmes to tens of thousands more 

patients with heart problems, preventing up to 14,000 premature deaths
 saving 55,000 more lives a year by diagnosing more cancers early 
 investing in spotting and treating lung conditions early to prevent 80,000 stays 

in hospital
 spending at least £2.3bn more a year on mental health care 
 helping 380,000 more people get therapy for depression and anxiety by 

2023/24
 delivering community-based physical and mental care for 370,000 people with 

severe mental illness a year by 2023/24.
Supporting people to age well

 increasing funding for primary and community care by at least £4.5bn 
 bringing together different professionals to coordinate care better
 helping more people to live independently at home for longer
 developing more rapid community response teams to prevent unnecessary 

hospital spells, and speed up discharges home.
 upgrading NHS staff support to people living in care homes.
 improving the recognition of carers and support they receive
 making further progress on care for people with dementia
 giving more people more say about the care they receive and where they 

receive it, particularly towards the end of their lives.

To ensure that the NHS can achieve these ambitious improvements for patients, the 
NHS Long Term Plan also sets out actions to overcome the challenges that the NHS 
faces, such as staff shortages and growing demand for services, by:

a) Doing things differently
b) Preventing illness and tackling health inequalities
c) Backing our workforce
d) Making better use of data and digital technology
e) Getting the most out of taxpayers’ investment in the NHS

The plan is available online at www.longtermplan.nhs.uk.

3.2 NHS X

The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care has announced a new joint unit 
between NHS England, NHS Improvement and the Department of Health and Social 
Care, NHS X will focus on technology, data, innovation and digital capability. 

This new unit will bring together policy, strategic skills and expertise across these 
organisations to support the delivery of the technology vision launched in 2018 and 
the NHS Long Term Plan. It will be responsible for coordination and consistency, 
setting national policy, developing and agreeing clear standards for the use of 

Page 105

http://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/


4

technology in the NHS. It will be the single point for accountability for national digital 
transformation programmes and have oversight of NHS Digital.

The design of this new unit is at an early stage and senior management have started 
conversations with staff who might be affected across all organisations. The unit will 
be multisite (Leeds and London) and the aim is to finalise how the unit will work by 
April with it being fully operational by the end of the next financial year. 

The unit will be led by a new CEO, with dual accountability, who will report to the 
Secretary of State for Health and the Chief Executive of NHS England and NHS 
Improvement as well as the Permanent Secretary of DHSC. 

3.3 The Operational Plan: Preparing for 2019/20 Operational Planning and 
Contracting

The full NHS Operational plan for 2019/20 was published in January 2019 alongside 
indicative funding allocations for CCGs for the next five years. 

2019/20 is the foundation year which will see significant changes proposed to the 
architecture of the NHS, laying the groundwork for implementation of the Long Term 
Plan. For 2019/20, every NHS trust, NHS foundation trust and clinical commissioning 
group (CCG), will need to agree organisation-level operational plans which combine 
to form a coherent system-level operating plan. This will provide the start point for 
every Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) and Integrated Care 
System (ICS) to develop five-year Long Term Plan implementation plans, covering 
the period to 2023/24.

NHS England and NHS Improvement will set a system control total for each STP/ICS 
which will be the sum of individual organisation control totals. All STPs/ICSs will 
have the opportunity to propose net-neutral changes, agreed by all parties, to 
organisation control totals ahead of the draft and final planning submissions. These 
proposals will be subject to approval by Regional Directors. This flexibility is intended 
to support service improvement and collective financial management.

The full guidance can be found at: https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/preparing-
for-2019-20-operational-planning-and-contracting/

Table 2:  Timetable for 2019/20 Planning

Milestone Date
Draft 2019/20 organisation operational plans 12 February 2019
Aggregate system 2019/20 operating plan, system operating 
plan overview and STP/ICS led contract / plan submissions

19 February 2019

Deadline for 2019/20 contract signature 21 March 2019 
Final 2019/20 organisation operational plan submission 4 April 2019 
Aggregated 2019/20 system operating plan, system operating 
plan overview and STP/ICS led contract / plan alignment 
submissions

11 April 2019 

Page 106

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/preparing-for-2019-20-operational-planning-and-contracting/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/preparing-for-2019-20-operational-planning-and-contracting/


5

4. Delivery and Assurance

4.1 CCG Assurance: Improvement and Assessment Framework 2018/19

NHS England has a statutory duty to conduct an annual performance assessment of 
every CCG. The annual assessment is a judgement, reached by taking into account 
the CCG’s performance across a range of indicators over the full year and balanced 
against the financial management and qualitative assessment of the leadership of 
the CCG. 
CCGs are expected to focus on the strength and effectiveness of their system 
relationships, and using all the levers and incentives available to them, to make 
progress. The annual assessment considers how well CCGs, as individual 
organisations, have contributed to the performance of their local systems and to 
measurable improvement.
To aid transparency for the public, and CCG benchmarking against peers, NHS 
England presents both the overall ratings and the performance against individual 
indicators through a range of channels, including publication on ‘MyNHS’, part of the 
NHS website.

As part of the annual assessment CCGs submitted Quality of Leadership Self-
Assessments in February 2019 which are currently being reviewed by NHS England 
(Cheshire and Merseyside), prior to submission regional moderation in April.

Year-End Assessment meetings between CCG and NHSE have been arranged to 
take place in May 2019. Outcomes will be made available via MyNHS in July/August 
2019.

ENDS

Nicola Allen

Head of Medical, NHS England (Cheshire & Merseyside) & Lead for Service Change 
Assurance

4th March 2019

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD
20 MARCH 2019

REPORT TITLE Update on Unplanned Care System

REPORT OF Jacqui Evans

REPORT SUMMARY
The following report provides the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board with an update on progress 
and developments across the unplanned care system, overseen by A&E Delivery Board. 

RECOMMENDATION/S
 Note the update and ongoing priorities overseen by A&E delivery board
 Recognise the interdependencies of all partners to the resilient delivery of the 4 hour 

standard
 Note the improving position, challenges and priorities for 19/20

Page 109

Agenda Item 8b



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
N/A

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
N/A

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The unplanned executive team submitted a system plan, as required by NHSE, outlining 
applied learning from 17/18 with a clear system wide plan to improve patient flow and 
outcomes for 18/19.

3.2 This was the second year Wirral submitted a system plan, incorporating BCF, for which 
NHSE and the national BCF team held up as ‘good practice’.

3.3 Wirral continued to utilise and refine application of the capacity and demand modelling 
work, which was completed with VENN in 17/18. Moving into year 2 and refining the 
approach was acknowledged and endorsed by NHSE/NHSI, who encouraged other 
systems in the region to adopt the approach.

3.4 As in 17/18, system wide priorities to improve performance and deliver a ‘safe winter’ were 
identified, ensuring key BCF/NHSE requirements were incorporated:

 System focus to reduce ED attendances and non-elective admissions
 Delayed Transfers of Care-no greater than 2.67%
 25% reduction in stranded/super stranded patients
 Agreed improvement trajectory to achieve 90% performance against the 4 hr A 

and E standard by Dec and 95% from March 19
 Acute occupancy level 92%
 Zero tolerance of minor (type 3) breaches
 Implementation of streaming at the front door to primary care
 Timely ambulance handovers
 Eliminating corridor care
 Managing Monday surge
 Full implementation of SAFER

3.5 Key Issues / Messages

Following review of learning and performance in 17/18, Service Development Improvement 
Plans were agreed with providers, incorporating relevant performance and transformational 
improvement requirements, as agreed in the system plan. This approach intended to 
improve system grip and accountability. Progress is formally reviewed in the monthly 
contract meetings.

Page 110



3

3.6 Urgent care exec continues to meet formally monthly, with a fortnightly informal meeting 
between commissioners and providers. In quarter 4 these informal meetings were stepped 
up to weekly. Escalated issues from the system wide operational group, which meets 
fortnightly and retains responsibility for implementation and progress against the plan, are 
addressed by exec who report into A and E delivery board. 

3.7 Performance reporting across the system ensures both a single overview position and a 
detailed RAG rated plan evidencing progress. These are overseen at varying levels by the 
operational group, urgent care exec with exception reporting into board.

3.8 Wirral was part of the regional ‘urgent care system peer review’ in September, coordinated 
by NHSE. Wirral received positive feedback with regard its strong system approach and 
progress in some key areas, such as integrated discharge pathways and DToC, trusted 
assessor and capacity and demand modelling approach.

3.9 Winter Planning

The system completed the capacity and demand modelling work with VENN. Additional 
capacity based upon a set of validated assumptions was agreed. Additional 48 acute beds 
and 20 community beds required to deliver a safe winter. BCF, as per usual practice, 
retains winter element to support additional community capacity. This is to increase 
Intermediate T2A bed provision with supporting MDT and clinical oversight.

 
3.10 The acute beds decision by WUTH this year was to provide some additional capacity at 

Clatterbridge (30 beds) and 18 on the acute site. These are to be part of usual discharge 
processes and supported by Integrated Discharge team. (IDT) WUTH have gone at risk to 
provide these beds, as part of their overall business plan, for two years. This will be linked 
to a longer-term aim to reduce core acute bed stock. Some beds will come out in May 
and further number in October 19, TBC. 

3.11 The system is currently reviewing winter learning from 18/19, to ensure fully considered for 
19/20 approach and priorities. There are a few inter-related elements which will inform 
priorities, approach and focus. These include:

 Point prevalence review of Intermediate T2A and rehab services
 Better care fund review of scheme impacts
 Bed base review
 Refresh of system wide capacity and demand modelling
 Learning from other systems via ECIST (Emergency Care Improvement Support 

Team)

3.12 Current performance

Please see attached overview of performance across the system for unplanned care. The 
overview RAG rates the system priorities against performance trajectories with escalation 
commentary and exec leads.
 
Clearly, performance is varied, and the system remains significantly challenged in key 
areas.

Page 111



4

3.13 Notable progress has been made in relation to the following priorities:  

 The 4-hour standard has not been achieved. However, performance has improved 
from the previous year and is holding at an average of 87.19%. NHSE recognised 
the challenges faced by all systems and requested achievement of 90%, against 
the 4-hour standard. 

 A&E (Type 1 A&E Department) attendances for 2018/19 are 5.1% lower than 
17/18.

 Non-elective admissions have shown a 4.8% reduction from 17/18. 
 Delivering and maintaining DToC performance
 Streaming is now delivering, with new model in place from 5th Nov. 
 SPA is now co-located, bringing together 3 areas (MH/physical health and social 

care duty)
 High Impact change model evidences delivery of Trusted Assessor, effective 

teletriage and improved support to care homes, reducing ED attendances and calls 
to 111 and 999.

 Developing the IUCCAS model (Integrated urgent clinical care assessment service) 
New pathways in place for improved clinical assessment and new hear and treat 
pathways for 111 to divert to acute GP visiting service rather than NWAS.

 Reablement service and positive outcomes, supporting people to remain at home
 Walk in Centre’s and minor injury services achieving 99%/100% 4-hour standard 
 Community offer has scaled up in year and starting to evidence ROI, including 

improved home first offer, 7-day therapy service with streamlined structures and 
processes

 Domiciliary care has seen a significant improvement this year, however, requires a 
continued high priority focus

3.14 Key areas for the system to focus attention and address as urgent priorities: 

 Ambulance handover and turn around
 ED and assessment area flow
 Achievement of 4-hour standard
 Reduction on Stranded and super stranded patients
 Community T2A length of stay
 Maintaining domiciliary care capacity and flow
 Reducing NEL and ED attendance
 Full implementation of SAFER

3.15 There continues to be a mixture of reasons why the above has not been deliverable to date, 
including:

 Workforce-recruitment and retention challenges, leaving critical gaps, including key 
clinical and leadership posts.

 Culture and behaviours, which take time to address and require strong system 
leadership 

 System maturity to work collaboratively, organisational silos can inhibit progress. 
Recommendations from related pieces of work are increasingly focusing o single 
governance and intending to support the move toward integrated care systems.

 Capacity across the system to implement and embed transformational change at 
pace, with limited project management support

Page 112



5

 Gaps and delays in system data reporting, resulting in delayed escalation in key 
areas. These are now mostly resolved and place us in a stronger position for 19/20.

 Financial challenges across the system

3.16 Whilst 3.14 highlights the areas of focus across the unplanned system, where attention and 
grip is necessary. The analysis to date on system performance clearly identifies ‘stranded 
and super-stranded’ patient reduction as the area which will have most impact on all 
performance targets and improve outcomes for patients. This is now our key focus area to 
improve quickly. This is about streamlining and improving pathways and processes and 
approach both internally and externally. By ensuring all elements of the system are working 
at their optimum, we will reduce lengths of stay for patients. This includes effective front 
door and assessment area, full implementation of SAFER, effective Integrated Discharge 
team and resilient 7 -day community flow. By improving patient flow across the whole 
system, we will reduce the numbers of stranded and super-stranded patients and other 
key performance metrics and thus improvements fall into place, eg 4 -hour standard.

3.17 New 19/20 planning requirements

The recently published NHSE planning requirements for 19/20 have been considered by 
the team. We will be required in 19/20 to deliver the following:

 Development and establishment of an acute frailty service
 Establishment of a model of same day emergency care 
 Review and improvement in the reduction of long stay patients
 Full implementation of new IUCCAS model, supporting reduction in ED 

attendances and NWAS calls
 Establishment and Implementation of an Urgent Treatment Centre with redesigned 

urgent community pathways

We will be further improving approaches to reducing ED attendances and Non-elective 
admissions by expanding technology solutions, such as teletriage and telehealth. Our 
approach to supporting ‘high intensity’ users will also be significantly different in 19/20, by 
improving risk management and more intensive neighbourhood support solutions, we will 
further reduce pressure on ED and avoidable admissions, whilst improving patient 
outcomes. 

As a system we are in the process of finalising our operational planning priorities with 
supporting plan and SDIP’s.

3.18  Urgent Treatment Centre(UTC)

Consultation regarding the development of an urgent treatment centre and urgent care 
services in the Community concluded on Dec 12th 2018. Independent analysis of the 
surveys and feedback is due later in March. The team will then duly consider the results 
and make final recommendations early summer. Transport and estates working groups are 
continuing to meet to progress developments.

The capital bid to NHSE was unsuccessful, however commissioners are exploring alternate 
options. Clinical modelling and pathway redesign for the UTC is progressing with system 
wide stakeholders and key clinicians. Implementation timescales for the UTC at the front 
door of Arrow Park hospital remains December 2019.

Page 113



6

3.19 Next Steps

 Conclude BCF, point prevalence and wider bed base review and agree plan to 
implement the findings Q1 

 Finalise urgent care operational plan for 19/20 with supporting SDIP’s for providers.
 System redesign intentions must support priorities and focus on performance 

delivery
 Increased grip and approach for long stay patients, and associated pathway 

elements
 Maintain increased oversight of system performance and mitigations where needed
 Complete capacity and demand modelling for 19/20 to support transformation 

change planning and implementation, ultimately supporting achievement of a 
sustainable system

 Following evaluation of consultation, Implement the Urgent Treatment centre and 
redesigned urgent care pathways.

Page 114



7

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

4 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/A

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
N/A

6 RELEVANT RISKS 
N/A

7 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
N/A

8 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

(b) No because there is no relevance to equality.

REPORT AUTHOR: Jacqui Evans
Assistant Director, Integrated Commissioning Programme
telephone: 0151 666 3938
email:   jacquievans@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Performance Overview

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Health & Wellbeing Board 14 March 2018

Page 115

mailto:jacquievans@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Wirral System Urgent Care Reporting - (A&E Delivery Board)

Reporting Period: January #REF! Meeting  Date:

WORK IN PROGRESS
UrgentCa
reDBREF

Exec Lead Measure Target Current month
performance:

Previous months
performance:

YTD (Average) SDIP / Definition Reported
Month

Issue Action Progress

B4

Anthony Middleton 4 hour standard (ED) - (B4)

(90% end Q2)
(95% end Q4)

62.40% 63.60% 71.05%

Jan

 4 hour standard
trajectory not achieved.
Type 1 performance
deterioration.

Primary Care
Streaming now fully
operational &
delivering
trajectories.
WUTH awaiting RCP
recommendations to
support further ED
Improvements.

On-Going Grip delivered
within the WUTH ED.
Recovery plan to
improve performance.
WIC's to maintain
current performance of
99.9%

WUTH have now
received a the full RCP
report however have
not shared with the
system until signed off
by internal (WUTH)
committees.

Anthony Middleton
(APH Site)
(ED & ADHC)

74.00% 75.00% 79.53% WUTH3

Anthony Middleton (Wirral wide DSIT ) 84.26% 84.50% 87.37%

A26 Anthony Middleton Ambulance arrival - handover <=00:15:00 00:25:05 00:25:09 00:25:49

WUTH7

Jan There has been no
significant change in
ambulance arrival to

handover. There has been
a deterioration in overall

turnaround time in
January.

WUTH remain  In bottom
6 Trusts in North West.

Delays reported by NWAS
in handing over to
Ambulatory care.

Super 6 Rapid
Improvement

programme.  Weekly
meetings

Super 6 initiative
now concluded and
formal report now

pending.

A second ATN is now
in place in repsonse

to the pilot and is
now operational Mon

- Fri 12 - 8.

The geo-fence has
now been tested and

is correct.

NWAS have visited
clincal areas as part
of the quality bus

intiative.

A joint audit between
WUTH and NWAS is

planned to see whether
are being brought to

hospital appropriately
or if other services can

be utilised. Audit
requires sign off by ED

clinical governance
before

commemencement.
NWAS will commence

data collection
25/02/19 however the
joint review will not be
able to take place until

sign off.

Weekly  performance
escalated to Exec.

Monitored as priority at
UCOG.

Update from NWAS
following handover pilot
is that 71% of patients

per day could
potentially have been

left in ED after 15 mins,
this was based on

agreed super 6 critria.
Full evaluation & report

is pending from both
WUTH & NWAS

A25 Anthony Middleton
Ambulance turnaround
(Arrival - clear)

<=00:30:00 00:37:17 00:36:48 00:39:03 Jan

Jan

A20

Val McGee
Numbers diverted through SPA (Admission
Avoidance) - (A20)

 >=85% By Q3/Q4 28.00% 27.00% 28.00% WCT6 Jan
Trajectory to reduce
inapropriate patients

streamed to secondary
care by WCFT SPA.

Monitored via UCOG
& SPA Project Group.
New model for SPA
to be presented to

UCEX March
2019,includes

trajectory to reduce
inappropriate
referral's into

secondary care.
(physical and mental

health)

The trajectory to
reduce

innaprropriate
referrals into

secondary care is
being revised within

the current SPA
group project

meeting.

WUTH SB has agreed
to confirm the access

criteria to SAU,
AMAU, AECU and hot
clinics as a matter of

urgency. This will
inform the SPA staff

and DOS. - Still
pending

SPA Group awaiting
pathway and criteria

information from WUTH
to access appropriate
WUTH services. This

was escalated to WUTH
senior manager (SB)

who is supporting this
request.

The SPA project group
has now developed the

new draft process which
will be agreed Feb 2019.

The proposal will be
taken to UCOG prior to
UCEX for comment and

steer.
Jan

Val McGee NEL admissions (G&A - includes zero LOS)
Reduction of 3.5% from
previous financial year

-2.40 1.25 2.50% BCF Dec

Improvement in NEL
position from previous
month

Full mobilisation of
Duty Team/SPARCS/
SPA phase 2 and
Community Redesign
Phase 1 on 1st Dec.
Includes 7 day
therapy offer and
scaled up home first.

As part of phase 2
(home first) the
steering group has
agreed a set of
metrics that will be
reported by WCFT
(Natalie Parks). This
will include demand,
capacity and
outcomes for the
home first pathway
model.

Continue close
monitoring via UCOG &
Exec.

The implementation
plan for phase 1 to be
presented at next
UCOG.(NP)

The home first steering
group will continue to
monitor current home
first activity and are
currently refining and
developing a new home
first pathway and
metrics.

Val McGee/Anthony
Middleton

Streaming numbers (Patients Streamed) -
Average Based on Working Days

20-25 pts 30 25 13 WUTH 1 WCT 7 Dec

Significant improvement
with new WCFT Model
since 5th November 2018.
WCFT now providing
streaming nurse. Minimal
nos of patients redirected
back to ED. See below.

The system and
WCFT are to continue
to monitor & deliver
streaming
trajectories

Maintain Grip via
Streaming Governance,
Streaming Ops, UCOG,
AEDB and UCEX

Dec

184

525
640

6

34

39

Total number of patients streamed by month

2018 Oct 2018 Nov 2018 Dec
0

100
200
300
400

500
600
700

800

Referred back to A&E Not Referred Back to A&E

Page 117



Significant improvement
with new WCFT Model
since 5th November 2018.
WCFT now providing
streaming nurse. Minimal
nos of patients redirected
back to ED. See below.

The system and
WCFT are to continue
to monitor & deliver
streaming
trajectories

Maintain Grip via
Streaming Governance,
Streaming Ops, UCOG,
AEDB and UCEX

Dec

184

525
640

6

34

39

Total number of patients streamed by month

2018 Oct 2018 Nov 2018 Dec
0

100
200
300
400

500
600
700

800

Referred back to A&E Not Referred Back to A&E

Page 118



Anthony Middleton

Assessment area
(Inc Paeds)

>=30% same day
discharge (less than

24hrs)

WUTH 2

Improvement required to
support egress from and
across WUTH assessment
areas. Links with SAFER,

SHOP model and RCP
recommendations.

WUTH awaiting Full
RCP report &

guidance to inform
robust WUTH Action

Plan.

WUTH have received
a summary report
from RCP and have

developed an action
plan to implement

the key
recommendations.

WUTH leads have
met with CCG to
provide a verbal

update on the report
and have agreed to
share summary RCP

report and latest
action plan. The final

RCP report will be
shared once

recieved.

WUTH Action Plan to be
shared with system
leads and system to

support WUTH with the
RCP recommendations

to be delivered

65% LOS < 72hrs
Data not currently available

WUTH prioritising data capture

C5 Anthony Middleton SAFER (C5)
>=33% discharges by

midday
17.77% 18.90% 18.07% WUTH 4 Jan

SAFER is implemented on
several key wards. The
MD is supporting grip and
roll out and delivery via
Patient Flow
Improvement Group
(PFIG).

Delivery to be
monitored via PFIG &
UCOG

WUTH have
implemented the
SHOP model which is
being monitored via
PFIG and UCOG

A designated lead
(AP) has developed a
SOP and
standardised board
template to support
implementation of
SAFER and SHOP
model.

WUTH to grip &
operationalise SAFER
and SHOP model across
all ward areas

The SHOP model pilot
has recently been
evaluated and the
findings will be shared
within PFIG and UCOG.

Executive narrative:

IDT
Discharge

Tracker
Anthony Middleton

Stranded patients (Medically Optimised)
Reduction
10 pts Q2
20 pts Q3
30 pts Q4

Feb position based on data from 05/02/19 - MO & Non MO

Total 445 stranded
201 - super stranded

Top 5 themes;
Active ongoing treatment - 43%
Ongoing therapy - 12%
Social care assessment 11%
Reason unknown 8%
Reablement - 3%
T2A - 2%

WUTH 5 Jan

Trajectory is to achieve a
25% reduction in super-
stranded patients,
currently 12% in 'super
stranded' patients (as per
recent operating
guidance 2019 NHSE)

Significant grip is required
to fully embed SAFER &
SHOP, and standardised
Board rounds across all
acute wards & improve
data quality for stranded
patients via Business
intelligence.
Current Reports (WUTH)
1 Total Stranded= 357
2 Total 7-21 days = 272
3 Total 21 days + = 85

AEDB. Focused work
to achieve 25%
reduction via PFIG.
Planned point of
prevalence study
commenced in
January 2019 to
support improved
discharges into T2A
and reduce stranded
patient metric.

Improvements in the
management of
stranded patients is
one of the top
priorities for the
Wirral system with
engagement at both
executive and
operational level.

 A new process to
support improved
data and information
will be implemented
Jan 2019.

Progress against this
item will be
monitored at both
UCOG and UCEX.

Community Geriactician
has partically attended
stranded from week
commencing
25/02/2019 will attend
for the duration. Action
plan to reduce the
numbers of stranded
developed with key
statkeholders. Meeting
with WUTH information
to review queiries
raised by CCG . Super
stranded event planned
for 25/02/2019 to
complete a deep dive
excercise over in
Clatterbridge

IDT
Discharge

Tracker

Anthony Middleton 25% reduction in Super Stranded by end of year
based on avg 80 pts

Reduction
10 pts Q2
20 pts Q3
30 pts Q4

WUTH 5 Jan
Executive narrative:  ‘Reporting is temporarily suspended whilst WUTH investigate the recording and reporting process of Stranded patients, in particular the
identification of medically optimised patients.”

Anthony Middleton
Acute Medical LOS (Non Elective)
exc zero LOS - (Average LOS) - None Cumulative

<5.5 days Q3 4.7 5.02 4.9

WUTH 6

Nov

Currently WUTH ALOS
above trajectory

SAFER and SHOP
model being
implemented across
all NEL areas to
support identification
of "reason or theme
for delay"

There is grip from
WUTH leads across all
NEL areas .& activity

Anthony Middleton
Acute LOS (All Specialities Combined) - (Average
LOS) - None Cumulative

<4.8 days 4.7 4.9 4.75 Nov

C1

Jacqui Evans
DTOC (Proportion of Beds Occupied by DTOC) -
(C1) - (Medically Optimised)

<=2.67% 2.10% 2.30% 2.70% Dec

Position Slightly below
the target of 2.67 in Dec.

Jan's figures are only part
month until 17/01/19.

Maintain focus.

Dec / Part Jan

C8

Val McGee Average LOS T2A (C8) <=4.2 weeks Q3 5.59 4.75 5.51 WCT8 Jan

Nov position increase in
LOS, reported levels of
acuity high and senior
staff sickness potentially
impacted.This position
has improved in
December from 6.01
(weeks) to 4.84 (weeks) in
December 2019

MADE event 17th
Dec, weekly LOS
meetings -
commissioner input,
deep dive on LOS.
New T2A Contracts
governance and
contract monitoring

Point prevalence work
across the T2A system
has commenced
(January 2019) to
understand fully the
presenting issues and
identify solutions to
improve the model &
Process. The POP report
& findings will be
presented first week in
March 2019.

Jan

Page 119



C19 Jacqui Evans Dom Care Waiting list (C19)
Acute - 6,

T2A - 4 (Average)
Acute - 6
T2A - 6

Acute - 13
T2A - 7

Acute - 9
T2A - 5

Jan

Tight targets set for dom
care. Recruitment and
retention issues remain,
increase in challenge
following 2 new care
home openings in Wirral.

Commissioners
monitoring daily.

Spot beds agreed for
delays over nos in

acute and additional
brokerage work

underway to improve
escalation processes

and grip.

New commission
process for tender

complete and contract
awarded. In Alcatel

period. Integrated end
to end commission,
with new fee rate of
£15.60. Wirral wide

recruitment campaign
on going commenced.
Winter arrangements

for block capacity
pursued.

Executive narrative:

C14 Val McGee
 Re-ablement (C14)
% of people still at home post reablement
intervention

>=85% 81.0% 86.0% 84.0% Jan

Improvement on previous
month, on track and
within target.

Continued
mobilisation of
Community Services
Redesign Phase 1 and
SPA Phase 2

Continuous monitoring
via exec & UCOG

Executive narrative:

C34 Val McGee Re-admissions (T2A) <10% 16% 36% 19% WCT8 Jan

There has been a
reported increase in "re-
Admissions" It has been
reported from providers
that Acuity of patients
high.

A deep-dive into this
reported increase is
to commence
January 2019. In
addition the POP will
review acuity. System
to Monitor position
carefully, balance
between Acuity
levels and LOS.

A significant decrease is
a positive sign however
further work will be to
look at why Dec had a
high number of
readmissions.
Continuous monitoring
via exec & UCOG. Point
prevalence and
commissioner request
for quality team to
assess reasons for
readmission. Feedback
end Feb.

Mental Heath

Primary Care

Last Updated 20th February 2019

C8

Nov position increase in
LOS, reported levels of
acuity high and senior
staff sickness potentially
impacted.This position
has improved in
December from 6.01
(weeks) to 4.84 (weeks) in
December 2019

MADE event 17th
Dec, weekly LOS
meetings -
commissioner input,
deep dive on LOS.
New T2A Contracts
governance and
contract monitoring

Point prevalence work
across the T2A system
has commenced
(January 2019) to
understand fully the
presenting issues and
identify solutions to
improve the model &
Process. The POP report
& findings will be
presented first week in
March 2019.

Jan

Page 120


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5a Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2018
	2019 Report MSAB Annual Report 2017-2018
	MSAB Annual Report 2017-2018 Final

	5b DCS Update : Improvement Board
	6a The NHS 10 Year Plan
	6b Healthy Wirral Programme Update
	6c Public Health : Health Protection A Call to Action
	Wirral Health Protection Challenges
	Developments in the way we improve the health of individuals, communities and populations must be accompanied by a renewed focus on the basics of how we protect our communities from infectious diseases and environmental hazards. In addition we must ad...
	WHY FOCUS ON HEALTH PROTECTION?
	HEALTH PROTECTION PRIORITIES FOR WIRRAL 2018-2020
	1) The development of a system wide approach to Infection Prevention and Control in order to reduce the incidence of healthcare associated infections
	2) REDUCING ANTIMICROBIAL RESISTANCE
	3) REDUCE VARIATION IN UPTAKE OF CANCER SCREENING AND NATIONAL IMMUNISATION PROGRAMMES
	ENSURING WE DELIVER OUR HEALTH PROTECTION PRIORITIES


	8a NHS Quarterly - Update
	8b Unplanned Care - Update
	Appendix 1 - Performance Overview


